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33rd Annual Report

NOTICE

Notice is hereby given that the 33rd Annual General Meeting of Members of Key Corp
Limited will be held on Saturday, the 10th August, 2019 at 10:00 a.m. at the
Registered Office of the Company at 16/16-A, Civil Lines, Kanpur to transact the
following business :-

ORDINARY BUSINESS :

15

To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the
Company as at 31st March, 2019, together with Directors Report and
Auditors Report thereon.

To appoint Auditors and fix their remuneration and in this regard, to consider
and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution,

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to provisions of section 139, 142 and other
applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies
(Audit & Auditors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modifications or re-
enactment thereof for the time being in force) and pursuant to
recommendation of Audit Committee and the Board of Directors M/s. Vinayak
Tandon & Associates, Chartered Accountants (Registration No. 006751C)
Auditors of the Company to hold office from the conclusion of this Annual
General Meeting till the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting of the
Company on a remuneration of Rs. 30,000/- (Rupees Thirty Thousand only)".

"RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and
is authorized to do all such act, deeds, matters and things as may be
considered necessary, desirable or expedient to give effect to this resolution".

SPECIAL BUSINESS

3.

Appointment of Shri Raj Kumar Gupta (DIN No. 00200238) as an
Independent Director:

To consider and, if thought fit to pass with or without modification(s) the following
Resolutions as Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT Shri Raj Kumar Gupta (DIN00200238) who has been
appointed as an additional director of the Company by the Board of Directors with
effect from 15.01.2019 in terms of Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013 and
Article 96 of the Articles of Association of the Company and whose term of office
expires at the Annual General Meeting and in respect of whom the Company has
received a notice in writing from a member proposing his candidature for the
office of the director be and is hereby appointed as an Independent Director of
the Company not liable to retire by rotation for a term of five consecutive years”.

Re-appointment of Shri Padam Kumar Jain (DIN No. 00176945) as an
Independent Director:

To consider and, if thought fit to pass with or without modification(s) the following
Resolutions as Special Resolution :
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“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to provisions of Section 149 and 152 and any other
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") read with schedule
IV of the Act (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment there of for
the time being in force) and the Companies (appointment and qualifications of
Directors) Rules 2014 as amended from time to time Shri Padam Kumar Jain
(DIN No. 00176945) aged about 74 years (DOB 08.09.1944) who holds office of
Independent director upto 10.08.2019 who has submitted a declaration that he
meets the criteria for independence as provided u/s 149(6) of the Act and
Regulation 16(i) (b) of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirement) Regulation 2015 and in respect of
whom the Company has received a notice in writing u/s 160 (1) of the Act from a
member proposing his candidature for the office of the Director be and is hereby
appointed as an Independent Director of the Company not liable to retire by
rotation for a second terms of 5 consecutive years to continue to hold position of
non executive independent director w.e.f. 01.04.2019 (when Regulation 17(1)
(1A) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) (Amendment) Regulations 2018 come into force
beyond 75 years of age".

Re-appointment of Shri G.D. Maheshwari (DIN No. 00235209) as a Whole
Time Director:

To consider and, if thought fit to pass with or without modification(s) the following
Resolutions as Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to provisions of the Companies Act and all other
applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 or any other
modification or re-enactment thereof and subject to such approvals as may be
necessary, the Company hereby accords its consent and approval to the re-
appointment of Shri G.D. Maheshwari as whole time director of the Company
with the designation “Executive Director for a period of 5 years with effect from 1*
October, 2018 and shall hold office upto end of the September, 2023".

To approve the continuing the Directorship of Dr. K.B. Agarwal
(DIN No.00339934):

To consider and, if thought fit to pass with or without modification(s) the following
Resolutions as Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to provisions of Regulation 17 (1A) of the
Securities and Exchange Board of India Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements Amendment Regulations 2018 (including any statutory
modification(s) or re-enactment there of for the time being in force) or any other
applicable law consent be and is hereby accorded for the continuation of
directorship of Dr. K.B. Agarwal (DIN 00339934) aged about 80 _years (DOB
01.07.1939) to continue to holds office as a non executive non independent
director of the Company to continue to hold the position of non executive non
independent director beyond 75 years of age”.
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7. To approve the continuing the Directorship of Dr. B.D. Agarwal
(DIN 00235154) :

To consider and, if thought fit to pass with or without modification(s) the following
Resolutions as Special Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to provisions of Regulation 17 (1A) of the
Securities and Exchange Board of India Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements Amendment Regulations 2018 (including any statutory
modification(s) or re-enactment there of for the time being in force) or any other
applicable law consent be and is hereby accorded for the continuation of
directorship of Dr. B.D. Agarwal (DIN 00235154) aged about 75 years (DOB
02.02.1944) to continue to holds office as a non executive non independent
director of the Company as well as to continue to hold the position of non
executive non independent director beyond 75 years of age and his term shall be

liable to retire by rotation".
Regd. Office : By Order of the Board
16/16-A, Civil Lines, G.D. Maheshwari
Kanpur — 208 001 Executive Director
CIN — L65921 UP1985 PLC007547 (DIN 00235209)

Web Site: keycorpltd.com
E-mail: keycorpltd@gmail.com
Phone: 2305416

Place : Kanpur
Dated : 15th May, 2019
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NOTES:

1. A member entitlied to attend and vote is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and
vote instead of himself and the proxy need not be a member. A proxy form duly
completed and signed should be deposited at the Registered Office of the Company
atleast 48 hours before the commencement of the meeting.

2. The Register- of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain
closed from 4" August 2019 to 10" August, 2019 (both days inclusive).

3. Members who are holding shares in identical order of names in more than one folio
are requested to write to the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent of the Company for
consolidation of their holding in one folio.

4. Members are requested to inform the changes, if any, in their registered addresses
to the Registrar & Transfer Agent of the Company M/s. ABS Consultants Pvt. Ltd.
99, Stephen House, 6th Floor, 4, B.B.D. Bag (E), Kolkata-700 001.

5. Members seeking any information with regard to the accounts of the company are
requested to write to the company at its Registered Office, so as to reach at least 10
days before the date of the meeting to enable the Management to keep the
information ready.

6. Members who hold shares in Physical/Dematerialized Form are requested to bring
their Folio No./Depository Account Number and client ID Number for identification.

7. Pursuant to clause 49 of the Listing Agreement relating to Corporate Governance,
the particulars of Directors proposed to be appointed or re-appointed are given in
the report on Corporate Governance attached to the Directors Report.

8. Interms of Section 107 and 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, the Company is providing its
members the facility to exercise their right to vote by electronic means on any or all
of the businesses specified in the accompanying Notice. Necessary arrangements
have been made by the Company with Central Depository Services Ltd. (‘CDSL") to
facilitate remote e-voting. Remote e-voting is optional and members shall have the
option to vote either through remote e-voting or in person at the General Meeting
through Ballot or Polling paper.

Voting rights shall be reckoned on the paid-up value of shares ragi_stered in the
name of the member/beneficial owner (in case of electronic shareholding) as on the
cut-offdatei.e. 03.08.2019.

A person, whose name is recorded in the register of member or in the register of
beneficial owner maintained by the depositories as on cut-off date i.e. 03.08.2019
only shall be entitled to avail the facility of remote e-voting/voting through ballot or
polling paper at the meeting.

The instructions for shareholders voting electronically are as under:
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The voting period begins on 07.08.2019 at 9.00 A.M. and ends on 09.08.2019 at
5.00 P.M. During this period shareholders of the Company, holding shares either in
physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date i.e. 03.08.2019, may
cast their vote electronically. The e-voting module shall be disabled by CDSL for
voting thereafter.

The shareholders should log on to the e-voting website www.evotingindia.com
Click on “Shareholders”.

Now enter your user ID.
a) For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID,
b) For NSDL: 8 character DP ID followed by 8 digits Client ID,

c) Members holding shares in physical form should enter folio number registered
with the Company.

Next enter the image verification as displayed and Click on “Login”.

If you are holding shares in Demat form and had logged on to

www.evotingindia.com and voted on an earlier voting of any company, then your
existing password is to be used.

If you are a first time user follow the steps given below:-

For Members holding shares in Demat and Physical Form

PAN

Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric *PAN issued by Income Tax Department
(applicable for both demat shareholders as well as physical shareholder)

e Members who have not updated their PAN with the company/depository
participant are requested to use the first two letters of their name and the
8digits ofthe Sequence Numberin the PAN field.

e In case the sequence number is less than 8 digits enter the applicable
number of 0's before the number after the first two characters of the
name in capital letter. Eg. If your name is Heera Singh with sequence
number 1 then enter HEO0000001 in the PAN field.

DOB

e Enter the Date of Birth as recorded in your demat account or in the
company records for the said demat account or folio in dd/mm/yyyy
format.

Dividend | ® Enterthe Dividend Bank Details as recorded in your demat account orin

Bank the Company records for the said demat account or folio.

Details |, please enter the DOB or Dividend Bank details in order to login. If the
details are not recorded with the Depository or Company, please enter
the member ID/Folio Number in the dividend bank details field as
mentioned in instructions (iv).

ViIL. After entering these details appropriately click on “SUBMIT" tab.
IX. Members holding shares in physical form will then reach directly the company

selection screen. However, members holding shares in demat form will now
reach “Password Creation” menu wherein they are required to mandatorily enter
their login password in the new password field. Kindly note that this password is
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Xl.

Xl

Xl

XIV.

XV,

XVIL.

XVIIL.

XIX.

XXI.

to be also used by the demat holders for voting for resolutions of any other
company on which they are eligible to vote, provided that company opts for e-
voting through CDSL platform. It is strongly recommended not to share your
password with any other person and take utmost care to keep your password
confidential.

For Members holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for
e-voting on the resolutions contained in this Notice.

Click on the EVSN for the relevant “company name” on which you choose to
vote.

On the voting page, you will see "RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION" and against
the same the option “YES/NO" for voting. Select the option YES or NO as
desired. The option YES implies that you assent to the Resolution and option
NO implies that you dissent to the Resolution.

Click on the "RESOLUTION FILE LINK" if you wish to view the entire
Resolutions.

After selecting the resolution you have decided to vote on, click on
“SUBMIT”. A confirmation box will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your
vote, click on “OK", else to change your vote, click on “CANCEL"” and
accordingly modify your vote.

Once you "CONFIRM" your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to
modify your vote.

You can also take out print of the voting done by you by clicking on “Click
here to print” option on the Voting page.

If demat account holder has forgotten the changed password then Enter the
User ID and image verification Code and click on Forgot Password and enter
the details as prompted by the system.

Non individuals shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and

custodian are required to log on to https://www.evotingindia.com and
register themselves as Corporates. A scanned copy of the registration form
bearing the stamp and sign of the entity should be e-mailed to
helpdesk.evotingsindia.com.

After receiving the login details a compliance user should be created using the
admin login and password. The compliance user would be able to link the
accounts for which they wish to vote on.

The listof accounts should be mailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com and

on approval of the accounts they would be able to cast their vote.

Ascanned copy of the Board resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which they
have issued in favour of custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF format in
the system for the scrutinizer to verify the same.
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XXIV.

XXV.

Regd. Office :
16/16-A, Civil Lines,
Kanpur — 208 001

In case you have any queries or issues regarding e-voting, you may refer the
Frequently Asked Questions ("FAQs") and e-voting manual available at
www.evotingindia.com under help section or write an email to
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.

The Company has appointed Ms. Vibha Mehrotra ( Prop. M/s. Vibha Mehrotra &
Company, Kanpur) a Practicing Company Secretary (C.P. No. 3103) as the
Scrutinizer for conducting the e-voting process in fair and transparent manner.

A copy of this notice has been placed on the website of the Company and the
website of CDSL.

In case of Members who are entitled to vote but have not exercised their right to
vote by electronic means, the facility of ballot paper or polling paper shall be
made available at the meeting.

For abundant clarity, please note that the Members who have cast their vote by
remote e-voting prior to the meeting may also attend the meeting but shall not be
entitled to cast their vote again.

The voting rights of the Members shall be in proportion to their shares of the paid-
up equity share capital of the Company. The poll process shall be conducted and
scrutinized and report thereon will be prepared in accordance with Section 109 of
the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Management and
Administration) Rules, 2014.

By Order of the Board
G.D. Maheshwari
Executive Director

(DIN 00235209)

Dated : 15th May, 2019
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Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 on ltem
No.3,4,5,6&7.

i

The Board of Directors of the company appointed Shri Raj Kumar Gupta (DIN
00200238) aged 58 years as an Additional (Non Executive Independent Director) of
the Company with effect from 15.01.2019 in accordance with the provisions of section
161 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Article 96 of the Articles of Association of the
Company to hold office upto this Annual General Meeting. In terms of Section 149 and
152 and any other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 Shri Raj Kumar
Gupta being eligible offers himself for appointment, is proposed to be appointed as
Independent Director for five consecutive years till respective Annual General
Meeting. Notice has been received from a member proposing his candidature for the
office of the Directors of the Company. In the opinion of the Board Shri Raj Kumar
Gupta fulfill the conditions specified in Companies Act, 2013 and Rules framed there
under for his appointment as an Independent Director of the Company and is
independent of the management. The resume of Shri Raj Kumar Gupta is given
below pursuant to Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement.

Shri Raj Kumar Gupta holds degree of commerce and a Practicing Chartered
Accountants (FCA). He has more than 29 years experience in accounts/audit and
taxation. Heis Partner of M/s. Nandraj & Associates, Chartered Accountants.

Independent Director Shri Padam Kumar Jain have completed his five years term. In
terms of 149 and any other applicable provisions of the Companies, Act, 2013 Shri
Padam Kumar Jain is proposed to be appointed as Independent Director for five
consecutive years till 2024. Respective notice have been received from a member
proposing his candidature for the office of the Director of the Company. In opinion of
the Board Shri Padam Kumar Jain fulfills the conditions specified in Companies Act,
2013 and Rules framed there under for his re-appointment as an Independent Director
of the Company. Pursuant to sub-Regulation 1A of Regulation 17 of Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirement)
Regulation 2015 inserted by SEBI (Listing Agreement and Disclosure Requirement
(Amendment) Regulations 2018 approval of members by way of special resolution is
necessary for appointment/continuation of appointment by any non executive director
and independent director who has attained the age of 75 years. Shri Padam Kumar
Jain non executive independent director of the Company shall attain age of 75 years
on 08.09.2019. The resume of Shri Padam Kumar Jain is given below pursuant to
Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement.

Shri Padam Kumar Jain holds master degree in commerce. He is the Ex President of
The U.P. Stock Exchange Association Ltd. Kanpur. He holds experience in secondary
market operation for more than 49 years. He is director in SPFL Securities Ltd., PK,
Jain Real Estate Pvt. Ltd., Merchants Chamberof Uttar Pradesh, J.K. Cotton Ltd. and
Jagran Multi Media Investment Pvt. Ltd.
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Whole time Director Shri G.D. Maheshwari aged 62 years have completed his five
years as Executive Director. As per Companies Act and other applicable provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013 Shri G.D. Maheshwari being eligible and offering himself for
reappointment are proposed to be reappointed as whole time Director of the
Company. In opinion of the Board Shri G.D. Maheshwari fulfills the conditions
specified in Companies Act, 2013 and rules framed there under for his re-appointment
as Whole time Director of the Company. The resume of Shri G.D. Maheshwari is given
below pursuant to clause 49 of the Listing Agreement.

Shri G.D. Maheshwari holds Master Degree in Commerce. He holds experience in
secondary market and accounts. He is not directly interested in any other company.
He is holding the position of Executive Director since 1" October, 2003.

The nomination and remuneration committee of the Board of Directors has
recommended the continuation of appointment of Shri G.D. Maheshwari as Executive
Director of the Company considering his experience.

Pursuant to sub-Regulation 1A of Regulation 17 of Securities and Exchange Board of
India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirement) Regulation 2015 inserted by
SEBI (Listing Agreement and Disclosure Requirement (Amendment) Regulations
2018 approval of members by way of special resolution is necessary for appointment/
continuation of appointment by any non executive and independent director who has
attained the age of 75 years. Dr. K.B. Agarwal aged about 80 years (D.O.B.
01.07.1939) is a non executive non independent director of the Company. The resume
of Dr. K.B. Agarwal is given below pursuant to clause 49 of the Listing Agreement.

He holds bachelor degree of Law from Kanpur University and Master degree in
Commerce and Ph.D. in Commerce and is a fellow member of the Institute of Cost &
Works Accountants of India and Institute of Company Secretaries of India. He has
experience in the field of finance, accounts and capital market. He is the promoter and
director since incorporation of the Company. He is independent director in J.K.
Cement Ltd., Jaykay CEM (Centre) Ltd., Jaykay Enterprises Ltd. and J.K. Cotton Ltd.
He has served Merchants Chamber of U.P. and U.P. Stock Exchange Association Ltd.
as their President. He has been member of Federation of Indian Chamber of
Commerce and Industries and Associated Chamber of Commerce & Industry of India.

Pursuant to sub-Regulation 1A of Regulation 17 of Securities and Exchange Board of
India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirement) Regulation 2015 inserted by
SEBI (Listing Agreement and Disclosure Requirement (Amendment) Regulations
2018 approval of members by way of special resolution is necessary for
appointment/continuation of appointment by any non executive and non independent
director who has attained the age of 75 years. Dr. B.D. Agarwal aged about 75 years
(DOB 02.02.1944) is a non executive non independent director of the Company. The
resume of Dr. B.D. Agarwal is given below pursuant to clause 49 of the Listing
Agreement.
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He holds M.Sc. Ph.D. Degree and possess 40 years experience in Research,
Development and Administration.

6. M/s. Vinayak Tandon & Associates Chartered Accountants (Registration No.
006751C) Statutory Auditors of the Company has been our Auditors for the last two
years. They have submitted a certificate about their eligibility. The Board of Director as
such have decided to re-appoint them on a remuneration of Rs. 30,000/~ (Rupees
Thirty Thousand only) to audit the books of accounts of the Company for the year
2019-20. The ordinary resolution to give effect to the said re-appointment is
recommended for the approval of shareholders.

Regd. Office : By Order of the Board
16/16-A, Civil Lines, G.D. Maheshwari
Kanpur — 208 001 Executive Director
CIN - 165921 UP1985 PLCO07547 (DIN 00235209)

Web Site: keycorpitd.com
E-mail: keycorpltd@gmail.com
Phone: 2305416

Place : Kanpur
Dated : 15th May, 2019

10

33rd Annual Report

CHAIRMAN'S MESSAGE TO STAKEHOLDERS
Dear Stakeholders,

It gives me immense pleasure to share my views with our valued stakeholders and present
the 33" Annual Report for the year 2018-19.

| am pleased to report that during the year 2018-19 your Company has delivered
satisfactory financial performance.

During the year 2018-19 company has executed Loan business to the tune of
Rs. 127.70 lacs as compared to Rs.85.35 lacs in the previous year. The business of the
Company has gone up with growth in revenues. Moreover, the Company is concentrating
utilising surplus funds in mutual fund schemes.

PRESENT ECONOMIC SCENARIO AND PROSPECTS:

India has emerged as the fastest growing economy in the world and is expected to be one of
the top three economic powers of the world over the next 10-15 years. India's GDP is
expected to reach US$ 6 trillion and achieve upper-middle income status on the back of
digitilization, globalization, favourable demographics and reforms. India's Index of
Industrial Production (IIP) rose 4.4% year-on-year in 2018-19 and Consumer Price Index
(CPl) inflation stood at 2.57% in February 2019. Net direct tax collection for 2018-19 have
crossed Rs.10 trillion by March, 2019 while GST collection stood at Rs.10.70 trillion as of
February, 2019.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:

Before | conclude, on behalf ofthe Board of Directors and on my own behalf, | would like to
express my gratitude to our stakeholders and staff for their faith in our abilities to
continuously improve our working.
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DIRECTORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS

Your Directors present the 33rd Annual Report and Audited Accounts of the Company for
the year ended 31st March, 2019.

(T in lakhs)
FINANCIAL RESULTS e s
Income from Operations 32,78 33.88
Income from Investment in Mutual Fund 154.11 273.00
Other Income 0.18 0.60
Less : Operating Expenditure 61.09 62.49
Profit Before Depreciation and Finance Cost 125.98 244 .99
Less : Depreciation 3.10 2.66
Less : Finance Cost 0.00 0.00
Net Profit for the Year before Tax 122.88 242.33
Less : Provision for Income Tax 2.47 8.04
Less : Provision for Deferred Tax (0.18) 0.10
Profit after Tax 120.59 234.19
Balance of Profit brought forward 32.44 20.09
Amount available for appropriation 153.03 254.28
after adjustments
APPROPRIATIONS TO :
General Reserve 100.00 175.00
Statutory Reserve Fund 24.12 46.84
Balance Carried over 28.91 3244
2. DIVIDEND

In order to build up resources your Directors do not recommend payment of
dividend for the Financial Year 2018-19.

3. PERFORMANCE

Looking to the highly competitive market scenario, your Company has done well, Your
Company is investing the Surplus Funds in mutual fund schemes to augmentincome.

4. DIRECTORS

a) Dr. K.B. Agarwal (DIN 00339934) and Dr, B.D. Agarwal (DIN No. 00235154)
having attained the age of 75 years are seeking re-appointment by Special
Resolution.

b) Shri Yadupati Singhania (DIN 00050364) resigned from the Directorship of the
Company on 15.01.2019. The Board places on records its appreciation for the
services rendered by him as Director/Chairman.

c) Shri Raj Kumar Gupta (DIN 00200238) was appointed as Additional Director on
15.01.2019in terms of Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013. Shri Raj Kumar
Gupta hold office upto the date of ensuing Annual General Meeting.
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d) Dr. K.B. Agarwal was appointed as Chairman of the Company by the Board on
15.01.2019.

e) Further the Board appraised the performance of the independent directors and
found their contribution to the proceedings of the Board beneficial for the
Company. They have attended almost all the Board meetings and Committee
meetings held from time to time. Further, the independent directors have given a
declaration that they meet the criteria of independence as provided in Section
149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013.

AUDITORS AND AUDITORS REPORT

The present Auditors M/s Vinayak Tandon & Associates (Registration No. 006751C)
Chartered Accountants, will retire from their office at the ensuing General Meeting.
They have confirmed their eligibility to the effect that their re-appointment, if made
would be within the prescribed limits under the Act and that they are not disqualified for
re-appointment. You are requested to consider their appointment. The qualifications
in the Auditors Report is self explanatory and has been described in the Notes on
accounts.

DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTOR

The Practicing Company Secretary has given a certificate that none of the Directors
on the Board of the Company have been debarred or disqualified from being
appointed or continuing as a directors of Companies by the Board/MCA or any such
statutory authority.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

There are no employees getting salary in excess of the limit as specified under the
provision of section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rules 5(2) and 5(3)
of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules,
2014.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN
EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

The Company has no activities relating to conservation of energy or technology
absorption. There is no foreign exchange earning and outgo during the year.

LISTINGWITH STOCK EXCHANGE
The Companies shares are listed with Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd., Mumbai.

The Company's shares are marketable in Demat mode only. Shareholders are
requested to convert their physical shareholding into Demat mode.

INCOME TAX PROCEEDINGS
Company's assessments are completed upto the assessment year 2017-18

AUDIT COMMITTEE
During the year the Committee held four meetings.

NOMINATION & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
During the year no meeting was held.




I

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21,

STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE
During the year the committee held four meetings.
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

As per Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement with Stock Exchanges, a report on
Corporate Governance is enclosed as integral part of the Annual Report together with
the Auditors Certificate in compliance.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSIONS AND ANALYSIS REPORT

In terms of Clause 49 of Listing Agreement of the Stock Exchanges, Management
Discussions and Analysis Report forms part of this report.

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

Pursuant to the provisions of section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and
Companies (Appointment & Remuneration and Managerial Personnel) Rules,
2014 the Company appointed M/s. Vibha Mehrotra & Co. Practicing Company
Secretary of Kanpur (CP Membership No. 3103) as Secretarial Auditors of the
Company for the financial year 2018-19. The Secretarial Audit Report for the
financial year ended March 31%, 2019 is annexed to this report. The Secretarial
Audit Report does not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse remarks.

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

Extract of Annual Return of the Company in MGT9 is annexed hereto as Annexure
'A' and form integral part of this report.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Subject to Note No. Biii) of the Annual Accounts there was no significant
transaction of material nature with the related parties viz Promoters, Directors,
Management or relatives during the year and the provisions of Section 188 of the
Company's Act, 2013 are not attracted.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The Board of Directors has framed a policy which lays down a frame wark in
relation to remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company.
The details of this Policy is explained in the Corporate Governance Report.

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

The Company has endeavoured to develop and implement a risk management
policy, incorporating and identifying economic, financial and environmental risks.

EVALUATION OF BOARD AND ITS COMMITTEES

The evaluation of the Independent Directors was carried out by the entire Board
excluding the directors being evaluated. Further, the Board also carried out
assessment of its own performance and that of its committees based upon criteria
such as performance against set objectives, contribution fo the development of
long term strategy and risk management, level of communication amongst the
Board/Committee members and of the Board/Committee members with Key
Managerial Personnels.
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22. MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
The details of the member of meetings of the Board held during the financial year
2018-19 forms part of the Corporate Governance Report.
23. CODE OF CONDUCT
The Board of Directors has already adopted a Code of Ethics & Business Conduct
for the Directors and Senior Managerial Personnel.
24. DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Your Directors confirm :

. that in the preparation of Annual Accounts, the applicable accounting
standards had been followed;

Il. that the directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them
consistently and made judgments and estimates that are reasonable &
prudent so as to give a frue and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company at the end of the financial year ended 31st March, 2019 and of the
profit of the Company for that year;

Ill. that the directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013, for safe-guarding the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

IV. that the directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern
basis;

V. that the internal financial controls were laid down to be followed and that such
internal financial controls were adequate and were operating effectively;

VI. proper systems were devised to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating
effectively;

25. ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Your Directors wish to thanks the employees for their dedication and hard work.
Regd. Office : For and On behalf of the Board
16/16-A, Civil Lines, K.B. AGARWAL
Kanpur — 208 001 Chairman

DIN 00339934

Dated : 15th May, 2019




MANAGEMENT DISCUSSIONS AND ANALYSIS REPORT

1) STRUCTURE AND DEVELOPMENT :
Your Company is an registered NBFC and is engaged in finance business since inception
from 1986. The Company's thrust area is vehicle financing, particularly in old vehicle
finance and investment of Surplus Funds in Mutual Funds. The Company has developed
expertise in financing and recovery of its loan and built up sound portfolio of old vehicles.
The business activities of the Company are mainly concentrated in the state of Uttar
Pradesh where it has found enough scope.

1) OPPORTUNITIES AND THREATS :
With the growth in economy, particularly the service sector, there is ample scope for
vehicle financing which is company's thrust area. Company has developed expertise
during the period of 32 years in financing of used vehicles. Company looks forward to
avail such opportunities by expanding area net-work.
However, as the vehicle financing is high risk area, particularly in the northern region
where the company is operating, it is moving forward with caution. Moreover there is
severe competition from the organized banking sector particularly, private sector banks.
Further, the company foresees substantial potential in revenue generation from its activity
of investing surplus funds in mutual funds, which is however subjected to market risks.

i) PRODUCT-WISE PERFORMANCE :
The company is not a manufacturing company and is engaged only in vehicle financing
and investment in mutual funds. The performance of the company has been satisfactory
in the current economic scenario.

IV) OUTLOOK:
As has been explained above, future business scenario is hopeful.

V) RISKS AND CONCERNS :
Risk is an inherent part of finance business. Your company, however, has taken steps in
strengthening the risk management systems and practices. The company is continuously
monitoring the business by deputing recovery managers. Company during the last
several years has not lost any money in recovering its loans.

VI) INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM :
The company has adequate Internal Control System commensurate with the size and
nature of its business with regard to finance, recovery and investment.

Vil) OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE :
Looking to the highly competitive economic conditions, your company has done well and
has secured the business to the tune of Rs. 127.70 lacs.

Significant Financial Ratios :

S.No. | Particulars of Ratios 31.03.2019 | 31.03.2018| Remarks (in cases of variances of +/- 25%)
1. | Debtors Turnover Ratio 9.07 7.60 -
2. | Current Ratio 278 4.46 The decline in ratio is due to the decrease in
the amount of cash and cash equivalents as at
31.03.2019.
Operating Profit Margin 67.71% 80.43% -
4. | Net Profit Margin 64.46% 76.16% |-
Return on Net Worth 4.47% 9.09% The decline in ratio is due to fall in dividend
incomefsale of investments during the year.

Vill) HUMAN RESOURCES : el
The company has a professional team to control its day to-day activities under the
guidance of the Executive Director.
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SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2019
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the
Companies {Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel} Rules 2014].

To,

The Members

KEY CORP LIMITED
16/16-A, Civil Lines
Kanpur

| have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory
provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices by Key Corp Limited
(hereinafter called the company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that
provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory
compliance and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of the company's books, papers, minute books, forms and
returns filed and other records maintained by the company and also the information
provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the
conduct of secretarial audit, | hereby report that in my opinion, the company has, during
the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31st March, 2019 (audit Period)
complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has
proper Board processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the
manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter.

| have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other
records maintained by the company for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2019
according to the provisions of ;

i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder :

ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA') and the rules made
thereunder ;

i) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed
thereunder ;

iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made
thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct
Investment and External Commercial Borrowings;

v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and
Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 ('SEBI Act') :-

a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares
and takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 2015;

¢) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2009; (Not applicable to the company during the
audit period).

d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme
and Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 2014; (Not applicable to
the company during the audit period)
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1 e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt
} Securities) Regulations, 2008; (Not applicable to the company during the audit

period)

f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share

Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing

| with client |
I g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) |
Regulations, 2009; (Not applicable to the company during the audit period) |'

‘ h) The Securites and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities)

% to total turnover
of the company
100

I given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on

‘ . agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and

| obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting

| and for meaningful participation at the meeting. Majority decision is carried through while

the dissenting members' views are captured and recorded as part of the minutes. |

further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company

commensurate with the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure
compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

Name & Description of main
products / services

Place : Kanpur Name : Vibha Mehrotra
Date : May 10, 2019 C.S. No. 3103, CP No. 1832

Name, Address & contact details of the
FINANCIAL SERVICES AND INVESTMENT

Category/ Sub-category of the Company
Registrar & Transfer Agent, if any.

Address of the Registered Office

CIN

)
2
m
2
z @
8 <
E &
Regulations, 1998; (Not applicable to the company during the audit period) | (5} - 9
o i
I | have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the ;-.: g = L E
' following: s . & E Gu = %
i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India. = E ‘2( ém 8 Lt % o 2
= s o : > < -
ii) The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with Stock Exchanges, o 3 5 % E, 3 § E % ®2 g 2 3
o D -
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PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS :

I
i
ii Registration Date
iii. Name of the Company
i
V.
& contact details
Whether listed company
ii
I
SL.No
1
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{13 PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY & ASSOCIATE COMPANIES :

SL.No.

NAME & ADDRESS OF THE COMPANY

CIN/GLN

HOLDING/
SUBSIDIARY/
ASSOCIATE

% OF
SHARES
HELD

APPLICABLE

SECTION

T NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

V. SHAREHOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Break up as % to Total Equity)

Category of
Share Holders

No. of Shares held at the beginning of the year

No. of Shares held at the end of the year

Demat

Physical

Total

% of Total
Shares

Demat

Physical

Total

% of Total
Shares

% Change
during the
year

A. Promoters

{1) Indian

(a) Individual | HUF

(b) Central Government or
State Government

(c} Bodies Corporate

{d) Banks/FI

(e) Any other

4140519

ocoooo

=]

4140519

oo oo

69.01 414051

oo oo

9

oo o

4140519

oo o

69.01

oo oo

Sub Total (A) (1)

4140519

e |loocoo

4140519

69.01 414051

=] oo oo

4140519

69.01

o= ocoocoo

(2) Foreign

{a) NRIs-Individuals
(b) Other Individuals
{c) Bodies Corp.
(d) Banks/Fl

(e) Any other

Sub Total (A) (2) :

olcoococo

olcoocoo

oloooco o

o|lcooocoo

S|locooocoo

o|loocooo

ol|lcooco oo

o|locooo

o|lcooco oo

Total Shareholding of Promoter
(A) = (A)(1)+(A) (2)

4140519

4140519

69.01 414051

9

4140519

69.01

B) Public Shareholding
(1) Institutions

(a) Mutual Funds

(b) Banks/Fi

{c) Central Government
(d) State Government(s)
(e) Venture Capital Funds
{f) Insurance Companies
(g) Flis

(h) Foreign Venture Capital Funds
(i) Other (specify)

GGGDQDDEC}

600
100

oo o0ocoOo o

600
700

cCoOooOo oo

0.01

coooooo

G@DDDDD%D

600
100

coocoo oo

600
700

oocooooo

0.01
0.01

cCoooooo

(=== R = = B = il = B = R - Y -}

Sub Total (B) (1) :

g

700

1300

0.02

g

700

1300

0.02

(=3

(2) Non-Institutions

(a) Bodies Corporate

() Indian

(I) Overseas

(b) Individuals

() Individual Shareholders holding
nominal share capital upto
Rs. 1Lakh

(Il)  Individual Shareholders holding
nominal share capital in excess
of Rs. 1Lakh

(c) Other(specify) NRI

20214

335480

21671
2680

22400

1455536

0
200

42614

1791016

21671
2880

0.7

23278

0.00 0

29.85 374691

0.36
0.05

29071

1830

22400

1406911

0
0

45678

1781602

2807
1830

0.76

2969

0.48
0.03

0.05

-0.16

0.12
-0.02

Sub Total (B) (2):

380045

1478136

1858181

30.97

428870

1429311

1858181

30.97

Total Public Shareholding
(B)=(B)(1) +(B)(2)

380645

1478836

1859481

30.99

429470

1430011

1859481

30.99

(C) Shares held by custodian for

GDRs &ADRs

0

0.00 0

0

GRAND TOTAL (A+B+C)

4521164

1478836

6000000

100

4569989

1430011

6000000

100

p0dayy ppnuul pics




éc

€2

(ii) Shareholding of Promoters

Shareholder's Name Shareholding at the Shareholding at the % Change in share
beginning of the year end of the year d;ehm during
No. of % of total shares | % of Shares Pledged/ No. of | % of total shares % of Shares Pledged/ =
Shares | of the Company | Encumbered to total shares| Shares of the Company | Encumbered to total shares
1. KrishnaBehariAgarwal | 4140519 69.01 0 4140519 69.01 0 0
Total 4140519 69.01 0 4140519 69.01 0 0

(iii) Change in Promoters' Shareholding (Specify if there is no change)

Sr. No. Shareholding at the beginning of the year Cumulative Shareholding during the year

No. of Shares % of total share of the company No. of Shares | % of total share of the company
At the beginning of the year There is no change in the absolute shareholding of the Promoters during the year
(iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters & Holders of GDRs & ADRs)
Sr. No. Shareholding As on 31.03.2018 Shareholding As on 31.03.2019
For Each of the Top 10 Shareholders | No. of Shares | % of total shares of the company No. of Shares | % of total shares of the company

3 Mahendra Girdhari Lal 10793 0.18 18193 0.30

2 Amrandra Nath Mishra 10678 0.18 10678 0.18

3. Jayant Share Broking Pvi. Limited 8700 0.15 9500 0.16

4. Vijaya Commercial Credit Limited 8800 0.15 8800 0.15

5. Neeta Sunil Kanadia - - 8100 0.14

6. Rajendra Dhirajlal Gandhi (HUF) 7500 0.13 7500 0.13

T Vipul Rajendra Bhai Gandhi 7500 0.13 7500 0.13

8. Pratik Rajendra Gandhi 7500 0.13 7500 0.13

9. Rajendra Dhiraj Lal Gandhi 7500 0.13 7500 0.13

10. Rama Mehta - - 7000 0.12

(v) Shareholding of Directors & KMP

SL.No. Shareholding at the end of the year (Previous Year) Cumulative Shareholding during the year
No. of % of total shares No. of % of total shares
For Each of the Direclors & KMP Shares of the Company Shares of the Company
A Directors
1. Shri Padam Kumar Jain 100 0.00 100 0.00
Atthe end of the year (or on the date of separation if separated during the year 31.03.2019) NA NA 100 0.00
2, Dr. Bitthal Das Agarwal 200 0.00 200 0.00
Atthe end of the year (or on the date of separation if separated during the year 31.03.2019) NA NA 200 0.00
3 Ms. Manju Jain 100 0.00 100 0.0
Atthe end of the year (or on the date of separation if separated during the year 31.03.2019) NA NA 100 0.00
4, Shri Gokul Das Maheshwari 40 0.00 40 0.00
At the end of the year (or on the date of sef Juring the year 31.03.2019) NA NA 40 0.00
5. Shri Raj Kumar Gupta : 2 100 0.00
Atthe end of the year (or on the date of separation if separated during the year 31.03.2019) NA NA 100 0.00
B. Key Managerial Personnel
6. ShriV. K. Pandey 220 0.00 220 0.00
Atthe end of the year (or on the dale of separation if separated during the year 31.03.2019) NA NA 220 0.00
7. ShriR.N. Singh 20 0.00 20 0.00
Atthe end of the year (or on the date of separation if separated during the year 31.03.2019) NA NA 20 0.00
(v) INDEBTEDNESS
Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/ accrued but not due for payment
Secured Loans excluding deposits Unsecured Loans Deposits Total Indebtedness
Indebtness at the beginning of the financial year
i) Principal Amount
i) Interest due but not paid
iii) Interest accrued but not due N'E. NIL NIL NIL
Total (i + 1i + Iii) NIL NIL NIL NIL
Change in Indebted during the financial year
Additions
Reduction
Net Change
Indebtedness at the end of the financial year
i) Principal Amount
i) Interest due but not paid
iii) Interest accrued but not due NIL NIL NIL NIL
Total (i + Ii + iii) NIL NIL NIL NIL
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Vi.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL :

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole Time Director and / or Manager :

SI.No.| Particulars of Remuneration Name of the MD /| WTD / Manager Total Amount (Rs.)
1. Gross Salary Shri G. D. Maheshwari
(a) Salary as per provisions contained in 363300 363300
section 17 (1) of the Income Tax, 1961.

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17 (2) of the 104562 104562
Income Tax Act, 1961

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section - -
17(3) of the Income Tax Act, 1961

2 Stock option - -

3. Sweat Equity - T

4 Commission - -
as % of profit
others (specify)

5. Others, please specify - -
Total (A) 467862 467862
Ceiling as per the Act

B. Remuneration to other directors :
SI.No. | Particulars of Remuneration Name of the Directors Total Amount

T Independent Directors Shri Y.P. Singhania Shri PK. Jain Ms. Manju Jain | Shri R.K. Gupta

(Ceased from

15.01.2019)
(a) Fee for attending board & committee meetings 3000 15000 19000 - 37000
(b) Commission
(c) Others, please specify
Total (1) 3000 15000 12000 - 37000

2. | Other Non Executive Directors Dr. K.B. Agarwal Dr. B.D. Agarwal
(a) Fee for attending board & committee meeting 15000 6000 = 21000
(b) Commission - - = =
(c) Others, please specify - - - -
Total (2) 15000 6000 - 21000
Total (B) = (1+2) 18000 21000 19000 - 58000
Total Managerial Remuneration (A+B) 485862 21000 19000 — 525862
Overall Ceiling as per the Act.
C. REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MD/ MANAGER/ WTD
Si.No. Particulars of Remuneration Key Managerial Personnel
Shri R N Singh Shri S.N. Tripathi | Shri V.K. Pandey
CFO Company Jt. Secretary
Secretary

1. Gross Salary Total (Rs.)

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 17 (1) 228840 48000 225840 502680
of the Income Tax Act, 1961

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) of the Income Tax Act, 1961 69840 - 68831 138671

(c) Profit in lieu of Salary under section 17(3) of the - - - -
Income Tax Act, 1961

2. Stock Option - - - -

3 Sweat Equity = = = =

4 Commission - - - -
as % of profit

5. Others, please specify = = = &
Total (A) 298680 48000 294671 641351
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2. BOARD OF DIRECTORS

I incl f
1. COMPANY'S PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Company's philosophy on Corporate Governance envisages the attainment of the
highest level of transparency, accountability and equity in all facets of its operations and
in all its interactions with its stakeholders including shareholders, employees and the
clients. The company believes that all its operations and actions must serve the goal of
enhancing overall shareholder value over a sustained period of time.

The present strength of the Board of Directors is Six, whose composition is given below:

One promoter Non-Executive & Non-independent Director, Three Independent Non-
Executive Directors (including one women director), One Non-Independent Non-
Executive Director and One Non-Independent Executive-Director.

The Board of Directors met 5 times during the year. These were on 16/04/2018,
11/05/2018, 11/08/2018, 27/10/2018 and 15/01/2019.

The Composition of the Board of Directors, attendance of Directors at the Board
Meetings and at the last Annual General Meeting as also the number of Directorships
and Committee Memberships held by them in other Companies are given below :

Name of Directors Category No. of No. of Attend-  Relationship No. of No. of
Board Board ancaof Interested  Directorship Membership
Meetings  Meetings  thelast Director inother inCommittee
Held Attended  AGM held Companies of Directors
on inother
11.08.2018 Companies
Chairman  Member
Shri Yadupati Singhania  Independent § 1 No - - - -
Chairman Non-Executive
(Ceased to be a director
wef 15.01.2019)
Dr.K. B.Agarwal Promoter ] 5 Yes Dr.B.D.Agarwal 4 2
Chairman (*) Non-Independent
Non-Executive
Dr.B.D.Agarwal Mon-independent 5 2 No  Dr.K.B.Agarwal - -
Director Non-Executive
Shri Padam Kumar Jain  Independent 5 4 Yes - - -
Director Mon-Executive
Ms. Manju Jain Independent § 5 Yes = - =
Director Non- Executive
ShriG.D.Maheshwari  Non-Independent 5 5 Yes - - -
Director Executive
ShriR.K. Gupta IndependentNon 5 - - - - -
(Appointed as an Executive
Additional Director

w.e.f. 15.01.2018)

(*) Dr. K.B. Agarwal is an independent director in M/s. J.K. Cement Ltd. and M/s. Jay Kay Enterprises Ltd.
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MEETING OF THE INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

During the year under review, a separate meeting of Independent Directors was held to
assess and review the performance of Non Independent Directors, Board and timely
flow of information to Board from the Company’s management. The Independent
Directors of the Company were satisfied with the performance and timely flow of
information.

EVALUATION OF BOARD AND ITS MEMBERS

The evaluation of the Independent Directors was carried out by the entire Board
excluding the directors being evaluated. Further, the Board also carried out assessment
of its own performance and that of its committees based upon criteria such as
performance against set objectives, contribution to the development of long term
strategy and risk management, level of communication amongst the Board/Committee
members and of the Board/Committee members with Key Managerial Personnels.

PROFILE OF DIRECTORS TO BE REAPPOINTED ON RETIREMENT BASIS

Shri Gokul Das Maheshwari (DIN00235209) aged about 62 years was first appointed in
the year 2003. He is Post Graduate in Commerce. There is no Directorship in other
Companies.

. DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTOR

The Practicing Company Secretary has given a certificate that none of the Directors on
the Board of the Company have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or
continuing as a directors of Companies by the Board/MCA or any such statutory
authority.

4. AUDIT COMMITTEE

A. Composition and Broad Terms of Reference

The Audit Committee of the Company comprises of following three directors :
Shri Padam Kumar Jain Independent, Non-Executive Director & Chairman of
the Committee

Ms. Manju Jain

Shri G.D. Maheshwari

Independent, Non-Executive Director
Non-Independent, Executive Director

All these Directors possess knowledge of Corporate Finance/Accounts/Company
Law. The Statutory Auditors attend the meetings as invitees.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee constituted by the Board in terms of
Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Corporate Governance code as
prescribed under clause 49 of the Listing Agreement.

B. Meetings/Attendance

During the financial year ended 31" March, 2019, four meetings were held on
11" May 2018, 10" August, 2018, 27" October, 2018 and 15" January, 2019 .

The Committee adopted the annual accounts for the year 2017-2018 in their
rneeting held on 11" May, 2018.

The attendance of the committee meetings is as under :
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Name of Members Meetings Held Meetings Attended
Shri Padam Kumar Jain 4 3
Ms. Manju Jain 4 4
Shri G.D. Maheshwari 4 4

5. NOMINATION & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

A. COMPOSITION

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company comprised of
Shri Padam Kumar Jain, Dr. B.D. Agarwaland Ms. Manju Jain.

B. MEETINGS/ATTENDANCE
During the financial year ended 31* March, 2019 no meeting was held.

C. REMUNERATION POLICY
Remuneration policy of the company is directed towards rewarding performance,
based on review of achievements. However during the year only sitting fee was
paid to the Non-Executive Directors. Remuneration was paid to Executive Director
as per the terms of his appointment approved by the general body.

The number of Equity Shares held by Non Executive Directors of the Company as
on 31.03.2019is as under :

Name of Directors No. of Shares held

Dr.K.B. Agarwal 41,40,519
Shri Padam Kumar Jain 100
Dr.B.D. Agarwal 200
Ms. Manju Jain 100
ShriR.K. Gupta 100

D. Remuneration of Directors
Details of Remuneration / Sitting Fee to all the Directors for the year ended
31st March, 2019.

Name of Directors Salary Benefits Sitting Fee Total ¥
Shri Yadupati Singhania - - 3000 3000
(Ceased to be a Director w.e.f.

15.01.2019)

Dr. K. B. Agarwal - - 15000 15000

Shri Padam Kumar Jain - - 15000 15000

Dr. B. D. Agarwal - - 6000 6000

Ms. Manju Jain - - 19000 19000

Shri G. D. Maheshwari 363300 104562 - 467862
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6. STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

(A) The Share Transfer Committee inter-alia has been given the powers to deal with all
the matters related to transfer, transmission, issuance of duplicate share
certificates, split and/or consolidation requests. The Share Transfer Committee
meets regularly. During the financial year ended 31st March, 2019, Four meetings

were held as under :-
Name of Members Meetings Held Meetings Attended
Shri Padam Kumar Jain 4 4
Ms. Manju Jain 4 4
Shri G.D. Maheshwari 4 4

(B) COMPLIANCE OFFICER & INVESTOR GRIEVANCE
Shri S.N. Tripathi, Company Secretary who is designated as the Compliance Officer
of the Company is assigned with the responsibilities of overseeing Investor’'s
Grievance. His email address is keycorpltd@gmail.com and Telephone No.
0512-2305416.
During the year under review, no complaint was received.

7. GENERAL BODY MEETING

Location and time, where lastthree AGMs were held

Financial Year Date Time Place of the Meeting

2017-2018 11.08.2018 10.00a.m. 16/16-A, Civil Lines, Kanpur
2016-2017 11.08.2017 10.00a.m. 16/16-A, Civil Lines, Kanpur
2015-2016 10.08.2016 10.00a.m. 16/16-A, Civil Lines, Kanpur

During the year ended 31st March, 2019, no special resolution has been proposed/
passed by the Company’s shareholders through postal ballot. At the ensuing Annual
General Meeting, there is no resolution proposed to be passed by postal ballot.

DISCLOSURES

8A) CEOQO/CFO CERTIFICATION

A certification in accordance with Provisions of Clause 49(1X) of the Listing Agreement
in respect of the Financial year 2018-19 signed by CEO and CFO has been placed
before the Board.

8B) CODE OF CONDUCT

The Board of Directors has already adopted the Code of Ethics & Business conduct for

the Directors and Senior Management personnel. This code is a comprehensive code

applicable to all Executives as well as non executive directors and members of the

Senior Management. A copy of the code has been hosted on the Company's website
orpitd.com.
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8C)

8D)

8E)

8F)

10.

1.

he CEO of the Company has submitted his report regarding Code of Conduct by the
irectors and Senior Management for the year ended 31" March, 2019 and the same
i _\annexed with this report.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

A camprehensive list of Related parties & their transactions as required by AS-18
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, forms part of an Annexure to
the Notes to Accounts in the Annual Report & is placed before the Audit Committee.
None bf the transactions with any of the related parties were in conflict with the interest
of the Gompany.

WHIST‘tE BLOWERPOLICY

The Comipany Promoters advocates ethical behaviour in all its business activities and
has put |n place a mechanism for reporting illegal or unethical behaviour. The
Companyhas a vigil mechanism and whistle blower policy under which the employees
are free to\report violations of applicable laws and regulations and code of conduct.
The reportable matters may be disclosed to the Ethics and compliance Task Force
which operates under the supervision of the Audit Committee. Employees may also
report to thd Chairman of the Audit Committee. During the year under review no
employee was denied access to the Audit Committee.

During the ye: . a fine of Rs. 1,08,560/- was imposed on the Company by BSE under
Regulation 6 (1) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirement)
Regulations, 2095.

Management Diicussions and Analysis Report
Management Discussion and Analysis Report forms part of the annual report.
MEANS OF COMMUNICATION

The Company submitted its Annual, Half Yearly & Quarterly results to the Stock
Exchange in accordance with the Listing Agreement and also published them in the
two newspapers namely The Pioneer (English), Swatantra Chetana (Hindi).

The financial results and shareholding pattern of the Company are also available on its
website www.keycorplid.com

COMPLIANCE

The Company Secretary alongwith the Joint Secretary/Compliance Officer of the
Company, while preparing the Agenda, notes on agenda and minutes of the meetings,
is responsible for and is required to ensure adherence to all applicable laws and
regulations including the Companies Act, 1956/Companies Act, 2013 read with rules
issued thereunder, as applicable and the Secretarial Standards recommended by the
Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

11.1. Annual General Meeting

Saturday, the 10th August, 2019
at10.00am.

Registered Office of the Company at
16/16-A, Civil Lines, Kanpur-208 001

Day, Date and Time =

Venue -
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a) First Quarter Results

Financial Calender (tentative)

|
Results for the quarter

— Within 45 days from the close of quane:f"endfng

June, 2019

b) Second Quarter Results Within 45 days from the close of quarter ending
Sept., 2019

¢) Third Quarter Resuits Within 45 days from the close of quarter ending
Dec.,2019 [

d) Results for the year ended

J
Within 60 days from the close of c,t':arlerf year
31.03.2020 J

ending March, 2020

Annual General Meeting _  Upto September, 2020 /

11.3. Book Closure Date — 3rd August, 2019 to 10th August, 2019
(Bothdays inclusive)

11.4. Dividend Payment Date = NotApplicable (No dividend proposed)
11.5. Listing on Stock Exchanges

The Company's shares are listed with B S E Limited, P J Towers, Dalal Street,

Mumbai-400001.
11.6. Stock Code

DematISIN in NSDL/CDSL - INE130F01016
11.7. Stock Market Price data for the year2018-2019

During the year, the market quotation of the stock at Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd.

Mumbai was as follows :

Market Price Data ( ¥ )
Month Bombay Stock Exchange
(BSE)
High Low

April, 2018 26.70 21.50
May, 2018 22.55 20.00
June, 2018 21.00 18.45
July, 2018 23.50 17.85
August, 2018 27.65 22.80
September, 2018 26.25 21.25
October, 2018 20.20 16.85
November, 2018 18.50 15.70
December, 2018 15.50 13.35
January, 2019 16.55 12.89
February, 2019 15.30 11.45
March, 2019 14.96 11.60
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11.8. Share Price performance in comparison to broad based indices - BSE and NSE
As only few transactions could take place in the Company’s shares during the ye:?r
hence the comparison of share price with BSE and NSE indices, in management's
view, is not necessary.

11.9. Registrarand Transfer Agent

M/s. ABS Consultants Pvi. Ltd., having its office at R.No. 99, Stephen House, 6th
Floor 4 B.B.D. Bag (East), Kolkata-700 001 are Registrar and Transfer Agent for
both demat and physical segment.

12.1. Share Transfer System '

The Company’s shares are traded in the Stock Exchanges compulsorily in Derpat
mode. Shares in physical mode which are lodged for transfer are subject tg exercise
of option under compulsory transfer-cum-demat procedures. Share c§n!hcates are
either dematerialised or returned to the respective share holders within the time
prescribed by the authorities.

12.2. (a) Distribution of Shareholding as on 31st March, 2019

No. of Equity Shares No. of % of No. of Shares % of Shares
Ic-llelzf Folios Folios Held Held
001 to 500 8330 95,33 1323859 22.06
501 to 1000 293 3.35 234639 N
1001 to 2000 77 0.88 110722 1.84
2001 to 3000 1 0.13 27347 0.46
3001 to 4000 08 0.09 27753 0.46
4001 to 5000 05 0.06 23700 0.40
5001 to 10000 1 0.13 82590 1.38
10001 and above 03 0.03 4169390 69.49
TOTAL 8738 100.00 6000000 100.00
(b) Categories of Shareholders as on 31st March, 2019
Category % of share holding
Promoters 68.01
Body Corporate 0.76
Banks/Fl's 0.01
Mutual Funds 0.01
Public (Indian) 30.18
Public (NRI) 0.03
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13.2

13.3
13.4
13.5

131.

(c) There are no institutional investors who are shareholder of the company.
Dematerialisation of Shares and Liquidity
As on 31st March, 2019, 76.17% of the Company's total shares representing

45,69,989 shares were held in dematerialised form and the balance 23.83%
representing 14,30,011 shares were in physical form.

Trading in Equity Shares of the Company is permitted only in Demat form. For
having proper liquidity, the equity shares of the company is listed at Bombay Stock
Exchange Ltd., Mumbai.

Outstanding GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or - Nil
any Convertible instruments, Conversion
Date and likely impact on equity
PlantLocations - N.A.
Subsidiaries - Nil
Address for Correspondence
(i) The Company's Re
16/16-A, Civil Lines,
Kanpur-208 001 (U.P.)
Tel: (0512) 2305416
Email ; keycorpitd@gmail.com

(i) istrar T ;

M/s. ABS Consultants Pyt Ltd.,

R. No. 99, Stephen House, 6th Floor,4B.B.D. Bag (East), Kolkata - 700 001
Tel: (033)-22201 043, 22430153

Email : absconsultant@vsnl.net
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bers and senior
laration regarding compliance by Board ’mem
D:aiagemantgparsonnel with the Company’s Code of Conduct

This is to confirm that the Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for its employees
and Directors.
| confirm that the company has in respect of the financial year ended March 31, 2019,

received from the senior management team of the Company and the members of the Board,
a declaration of compliance with the Code of Conduct as applicable to them.

For the purpose of this declaration, senior management team means the Chief
Financial Officer, the Company Secretary and all functional heads of the Company as on

March 31,2019.

G.D. Maheshwari

B Executive Director & CEO

Dated : 15th May, 2019
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AUDITORS’ REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
To,
The Members of
KEY CORP LIMITED

We 'have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by Key Corp
Limited, for the year ended on 31st March, 2019, as stipulated in Clause 49 of the Listing
Agreement of the said Company with stock exchanges.

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the
Management. Our examination has been limited to a review of the procedures and
imple.r‘nentations thereof adopted by the Company for ensuring compliance with the
comﬁhnns of the Corporate Governance as stipulated in the said Clause. It is neither an
audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, and based on the representations made by the Directors and the Management we certify

mat the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated
in the above mentioned listing agreement.

As required by the‘ Guidance Note issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
we report that no investor grievances were pending for a period exceeding one month, as
per the records maintained by the Company. ’

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the

Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with whi
_ ich the managemen
the affairs of the Company. ’ e

For VINAYAK TANDON & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
(FRN : 006751C)

Place : Kanpur (CA. VINAYAK TANDON)

Dated : 15th May, 2019 Partner
Membership No. : 072968

36

33rd Annual Report

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

TO,
THE MEMBERS OF KEY CORP LIMITED
REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS :

1) OPINION
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of KEY CORP LIMITED ('the
Company') which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2019, the Statement
of Profit & Loss and the Cash Flow statement for the year then ended, and a summary
of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Act
in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company
as at 31" March, 2019 and its profit and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

2) BASIS FOROPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") and the Standards
on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls,
both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over
financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respect. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

3) KEYAUDITMATTERS
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters
were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as awhole, and in
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters.

DESCRIPTION OF KEY AUDIT MATTER

ACCOUNTING FOR PAYMENT OF GRATUITY.

The provision for retirement benefits for gratuity is made as per the Payment of Gratuity
Act, 1972. The Accounting Standard 15 "Employees Benefits” prescribed by the
Central Government is applicable to the company in its entirely as the company is a
listed company.

In formulating the accounting policy regarding employees benefits, the management of
the company were motivated by the fact that average number of employees at any time
during the year were less than 50. In similar circumstances, unlisted companies have
been permitted to calculate and account for the accrued liability under the head
(Gratuity) by some other rational method. Provision of the Payment of Gratuity Act,
1972 gives one such method.
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4)

5)

6)

The management of the company decided to continue with the same accounting policy
as it still feels that the size of the company does not make it feasible to provide gratuity
by way of Actuarial Valuation.

RESPONSIBILITES OF MANAGEMENT AND THOSE CHARGED WITH
GOVERNANCE FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section
134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act") with respect to the preparation of these
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance and cash flows of the company in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, including the accounting standard specified
under section 133 of the Act, read with the rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records
in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selections
and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for
assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial
reporting process.

AUDITOR'S REPONSIBILITY :

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGALAND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS:

1) As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order,2016 (“the Order”) issued
by the Central Government of India in terms of sub section (11) of section 143 of the
Act, we give in the Annexure “A” a statement on the matters specified in the
paragraph 3 and 4 of the order, to the extent applicable.

II) Asrequired by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations, which to

the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our
audit;
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Place :
Dated :

Kanpur

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by
the Company sofar as itappears from our examination of those books;

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flomf
Statement dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of account;

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statement comply wiﬂj the Accounting
Standards specified under section 133 of the act read with rule 7 of .thal
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, except non compliance of AS-'15
“Employee Benefits” to the extent that the provisions for retirement
benefits for Gratuity are made as per The Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972
and not in the manner prescribed in AS-15 (See Note No. A03 (ii) of Notes

on Account);

e. On the basis of written representations received from the directors, as on 31st

March, 2019 and taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the
directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 2019 from being appointed as a
director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act;

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls, over financial
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls,
refer to our separate report in Annexure “B" and;

g. With respect to other matter to be included in the Auditor's Report in

accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies ( Audit and Auditors') Rules, 2014,

in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the

explanations given to us and as confirmed by the management of the

company :-

iy There are no pending litigations on the company in respect of which a
provision is required to be made.

ii) Thecompany has made provisions , as required under the applicable law
or accounting standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long
term contracts including derivative contracts;

iiiy There are no amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the company.

For VINAYAK TANDON & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
(FRN : 006751C)

(CA. VINAYAK TANDON)
Partner

15th May, 2019 Membership No. : 072968
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ANNEXURE "A" Referred to in Paragraph 6(l) of ourIndependent Auditor's Report to
the members of KEY CORP LIMITED on the financial statements for the year ended
31 March, 2019.

Based on such checks and other generally accepted auditing procedures carried on by us
and according to the information and explanations given to us, we report that :-

i) a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative detailsand situation of fixed assets.

b) Allthe assets have been physically verified by the Management during the year
and there is a regular programme of verification which, in our opinion, is
reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its
assets. Nodiscrepancies were noticed on such verification.

c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable
properties are held in the name of "Key Leasing and Finance Limited", the
erstwhile name of the Company.

ii) During the year, the company had no inventory in the nature of stock on hire, hence,
paragraph 3 (i) of the order is not applicable.

iii) The Company has not granted any loans to body corporate covered in the register
maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act").

iv

—

In our opinion and according to information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not granted any loan to directors etc. prescribed U/S 185 of the
Companies Act, 2013. Further, the Company is a Non Banking Financial Company,
hence Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable to the Company.

v) The company has not accepted any deposits from the public.
vi

The Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of the cost records
under section 148(1) of the Act, for any of the services rendered by the company.

vii) a) The company is regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed
statutory dues including provident fund, Income tax, Wealth tax, Service tax,
and other material statutory dues applicable to it. However, the Employees
State Insurance Actis presently notapplicable to the company

Further to our information, no undisputed amounts in respect of Income tax, wealth
tax and other material statutory dues applicable to it, were in arrears as at

31.03.2019 for a period of more than six months from the date these became
payable.

b) There are no dues of income tax, wealth tax, service tax & other material
statutory dues which are required to be deposited on account of any dispute.
Custom duty, sales tax, excise duty & cess are not applicable to the Company.

viii) The Company has not defaulted in the repayment of dues to financial institutions,
banks or debenture holders during the year.

ix) The Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further public
offer (including debt instruments) and term loans during the year. Accordingly,
paragraph 3(ix) of the Order is not applicable.
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x) According to information and explanations given to us no material fr:_aud on or by the
Company has been noticed or reported during the course, of our audit.

i i i i i d based on our
xi) According to information and explanations given to us an |
: examinatigon of the records of the Company, the company has paid/provided for
managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by
the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule 'V'to the Act.

xii) According to information and explanations given to us, the Con:npany is not a Nidhi
Company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

i i i i i based on our
«iii) According to information and explanations given to us and
] examinatigon of the records of the Company, transaction with related pafues a:‘s’
identified by the management of the company are in compliance with section 17
and 188 of the Act where applicable and details of such transactions have be_en
disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable accounting
standards.

i i i i to us and based on our
xiv) According to information and explanations given
) examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any
preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible
debentures during the year.

i i to us and based on our
xv) According to information and explanations given :
: examination of the records of the Company, the Company hgs not entered into non
cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him.

i ing it to be registered

xvi) The Company is a Non Banking Financial Company requiring i

: under Secr:tio: 451A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. The Company has
obtained the said registration.

For VINAYAK TANDON & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
(FRN : 006751C)

(CA. VINAYAK TANDON)
Place : Kanpur Partner

Dated : 15th May, 2019 Membership No. : 072968
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Annexure ‘B' to the Auditors’ Report referred to in paragraph S(l)f of our
Independent Auditors' Report to the members of Key Corp Limited on the financial
statements for the year ended 31" March, 2019.

Report on the internal financial controls over financial reporting under Clause (i)
of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Key Corp
Limited (‘the Company”) as of 31" March, 2019 in conjunction with our audit of the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ('ICAI'). These responsibilities include the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that
were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls
over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, fo the extent applicable to
an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial
Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate
internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and i
such controls operated effectively in all material respect.

Our audit invalves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design
and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system
over financial reporting.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Rfapor.'ting e
A company's internal financial control over financial rgportlng is a‘ process 'deS|gn§ th:
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial report.lng an :
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in af:cordance with gt.f.\nen:-l.yI
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal ﬂnanm.al control O\I.rer lnanclaf
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (tl) pertain to the malnte.nance c;
records that, in reasonable details, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions an
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) providel reasonable.assurance thz_at
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit prepar{atlon of financial state.ments |2
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and. that recglptfs anf
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordgnce with authorisations o
management and directors of the company; and .(3} provnc!e. Teasonable alssura‘[?ce
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, yse, or dISp?S ion
of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over ﬁngncial repomnig,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be Qetected,.A130‘
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls qvar financial repcf)rhng .tc:
future periods are subject to the risk that the internal. ﬂnancrg_i control ovst:; |zanc:;
reporting may become inadequate because of changes. in conditions, or that the degr
of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an agequate internal ﬁnanc!a:
controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controlf; over ﬁnamtzlal
reporting were operating effectively as at 31st March, 2019, based on th_e internal con;oI
over financial reporting criteria established by the Company con;ldeﬁng the essen !al
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Fmanclaf
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants o

India.

For VINAYAK TANDON & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
(FRN : 006751C)

(CA. VINAYAK TANDON)
Partner
Membership No. : 072968

Place : Kanpur
Dated : 15th May, 2019
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BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2019 STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2019 amount in Z

Amount in T o
n
Particulars Note No. As at As at Particulars Note No. Y;?Ef;&‘: ;1%3_2013
31.03.2019 31.03.2018
D
A B = D A g :
: 28
L~ EQUITYAND LABILITES | Dt Ae  isemaz  2meon
(1) Shareholders' funds b Otharoome . Tl A0
(a) Share capital A0 6,00,00000  6,00,00,000 Il Total Revenue (I + ) 1,87,07,343 S,
{b) Reserves and surplus A02 20,97,26,081 19,76,67,355
SUB TOTAL 26,97,26,081 25,76,67,355 IV. Expenses:
(2) Non-current liabilities Employes benefits expense A17 30,41,859 34.93‘81;
(a) Long-term provisions A03 20,14,557 19,43,705 Fincineoosls A18 M‘: Sdeag
SUB TOTAL 20,14,557 19,43,705 Depreciation and amortization expense ol 33'(153'457 27.55,601
{3} Current liabilities Other expenses A19 101y A 1
(a) Trade payables A4 429,735 5,80417 I 64,19,367 Sth
(b) Other current liabilities A05 2,87,147 3,68,609
(c) Short-term provisions A06 10,51,862 8,04,325 V. Profit before exceptional and extraordinary items and tax (V) 1,22,67,976 2,42,32,579
SUB TOTAL 17,68,744 17,53,351
TOTAL 213500382 26,13,64411 VI. Profit before extraordinary fems and tax bt LI
Il.  ASSETS 4232579
(1) Non-current assets VIl. Profit before tax 1,22,87,976 242,325
(a) Property Plant And Equipment
Tangible assets A07 38,29,077 35,54,648 VIll. Tax expense : S 8,04,325
(b) Non-current investments A08 25,17,41,119 24,14,52,085 (1) Current tax - {:‘ 8 I287] 9.260
(c) Deferred tax assets (Net) A09 470217 451,930 (2) Deferred tax (Net) A ’ '
(d) Long term loans and advances A10 1,25,90,367 77,25,757 o
SUB TOTAL 268630780 253184420 JX. Proftf{Loxs) forthe period from continuing 12058726 2341899
(2) Current assets operations (VIl-Vii) — A
{a) Trade receivables AN 1,04,824 1,10,294 . — s 0
(b; Cash and cash equivalents A12 14,49,284 47,34,250 X.  Profit/(Loss) from Discontinuing operations (after tax) ’
(c) Short-term loans and advances A13 30,36,267 32,82,057 ; 18,994
(d) Other current asses A4 2,88,227 53,390 Xl Profit/(Loss) for the period (IX + X) NgRIE 2
SUB TOTAL 48,78,602 81,79,991 XII. Earnings per equity share (Basic) A20 2.01 3.90
TOTAL 27,35,09,382 26,13,64,411 B
Additional Notes B Additional Notes )
Significant Accounting Policies c Significant Accounting Policies c
AUDITOR’S REPORT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TR R A ur separate report of even date attached S.N. TRIPATHI DR. K. B. AGARWAL
As per our separate report of even date attached S.N. TRIPATHI DR. K. B. AGARWAL A " SOCIATES Company Secretary  Chairman
for VINAYAK TANDON & ASSOCIATES Company Secretary  Chairman for VINAYAK TANDON & AS PADAM KUMAR JAIN
Chartered Accountant PADAM KU J Chartered Accountants R. N. SINGH Diractor
_ 5 R.N. SINGH ; it (FRN : 006751C) CFO
(FRN : 006751C) CFO Director MANJU JAIN
(CA. VINAYAK TANDON) MANJU JAIN (CA. VINAYAK TANDON) Director
Partner Director Partner : - 072968 RAJ KUMAR GUPTA
Membership No. : 072968 RAJ KUMAR GUPTA Mesmbarip No, Director
. Director Place : Kanpur G. D. MAHESHWARI
gf;;?, : f?“thp:;ay o G. D. MAHESHWARI Dated : 15th May, 2019 Executive Director

Executive Director
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31.03.2019 | NOTES ACCOMPANYING THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 31.03.2019
( ¥ in Lacs) : A
Particulars s at As at
e at As at | " 31.03.2019 31.03.2018
A. CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES : e | z 2
Net Profit after tax 120.59 234.19
Adjustment for :- ) A01) SHARECAPITAL:
Add : () Non Cash item, Depreciation 3.40 266 (a) Authorised:
(i) Provision Required by prudental norms 048 S 1,00,00,000 Equity Shares of T 10/-each 10,00,00,000  10,00,00,000
(iii) Provision for Income Tax 247 8.04 (b) Issued, Subscribed & Fully Paid-up :
i 0.18) 0.09 o T s 6,00,00,000  6,00,00,000
(i) Dividend from Mutual Funds (128.12) (216.47) T b S
(i) Gain from Mutual Fund Units (25.99) (56.53) TOTAL 6,00,00,000 6,00,00,000
() Profit on Sale of Assets (0.00) (0.42) (c) Asatthe year end the following equity sharsholders held more than five percent shares in
(v} Provision Written off (0.00) (148.54) (0.02) (262.65) the company :-
Operating Profit before working capital changes (27.95) (28.46) Particulars As at31.03.2019 Asat31.03.2018
Adjustments for Changes in Working Capital S.No.  Nameofthe Shareholder Number of % of Number of % of
Add : (i) Increase in provision for gratuity 0.52 112 Sharesheld  holding Shares held holding
Less : (i) Decrease in Cument Liabilties and Advances (232) (3.09) () ShiK.B. Agarwal 4140519 69.01 4140519 69.01
{iii) Increase in Loan on Vehicles (45.18) 2272 -
(v} Increase in Current Assets and Advances (1.02) (47.98) 058 21.33 Particulars As at As at
; : — —_— 31.03.2019 31.03.2018
Less : Advance Income Tax Paid (229)  (2.29) (8.00) (8.00) 4 T
NET CASH (OUTFLOW)/INFLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES (a) (78.22) (15.13)
B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES : A02) RESERVES & SURPLUS :
Add: () Dividend from Mutual Funds 128.12 21647 (2)  CapitalReserve 2,52,323 2,52,323
Add: (i) Sale of Fixed Assets - 0.42 (b)  Statutory Reserve Fund 1,14,77,035 90,65,289
Add: (i) Sale of Investments (Mutual Fund) 22442 35254 29244 509.33 (c)  GeneralReserve:
Less: (i) Purchase of Investments (Mutual Fund) (301.32) (482.93) Opening Balance 18,50,00,000 16,75,00,000
(i} Purchase of Fixed Assets (5.85) (307.17) (8.28) (491.21) Add: Transferred from Profit & Loss
NET CASH INFLOW/(QUTFLOW) FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES (b 45.37 18.12 Account during the year 1,00,00,000 1,75,00,000
C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES (c) Nil Nil Sub Total 19,50,00,000 18,50,00,000
NET CASH (OUTFLOW)/INFLOW DURING THE PERIOD [a+b + ] (32.85) 2.99 (d)  Reserve for Deferred Tax 1,05,710 1,056,710
OPENING BALANCE OF CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS 47.34 44,35 ()  Profitand LossAccount -
CLOSING BALANCE OF CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS 14.49 47.34 Opening Balance 32,44,033 20,08,838
Add: Surplusinthe Statement of Profitand Loss Account  1,20,58,726 2,34,18,994
w Amount available for appropriation 1,53,02,759 2,54,27,832
As per our separate report of even date attached S.N. TRIPATHI DR. K. B. AGARWAL Less: Transferredto General Reserve 1,00,00,000 1,75,00,000
fgrr! VJNJZ‘QT TANE)OSJ & ASSOCIATES Company Secretary ~ Chairman Transferred to Statutory Reserve Fund 24,11,746 46,83,799
arter ccountants PA
(FRN : 006751C) 2;% b Dfrgggi FORRRA Sub Total 28,91,013 32,44,033
(CA. VINAYAK TANDON) MANJU JAIN Total (a+b+c+d+e) 20,97,26,081 19,76,67,355
Partner . Director
Membership No. : 072968 RAJ KUMAR GUPTA (f) A sum of T 2411746/- (Previous Year ¥ 4683799/-) being 20% of the net profit has been
Place : Kanpur Director transferred in the current year to the Statutory Reserve Fund ufs 45IC of the Reserve Bank
Dated : 15th May, 2019 G. D. MAHESHWARI of India Act, 1934 as per the advise of the Reserve Bank of India.

Executive Director
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o ]
Particulars As at As at Al .= 5 v w © = o | w
31.03.2019 31.03.2018 2128 ezl 2 @5 B [
T T oml4z 5 K 2
™ — -— Gl
=
A03) () LONG-TERM PROVISIONS : e
(a) Prcvfsion for l?mpfoyees benefits 19,56,483 19,03,718 4 = ~ o o © = o e
(b) Provision against Standard Assets 58,074 39,987 e Wl s g wie 2 B o 2 % "g: E 5
= (=] P~ - w0
Total 20,14,557 19,43,705 z9 2 5 2 E " § 3
(i) The Accounting Standard-15 "Employee benefits”, prescribed by the Central Government, is == =
applicable to the company in its entirety as our company is a listed Company. (=2} S5 o i P FAER T e
In formulating the accounting policy regarding employee benefits, we were motivated by the fact 558 p| o =2 8 & B L = |5 §
thataverage numberof employees at any time during the financial year, were 17 i.e. less than 50. =] ) E § g E % § E =
In similar circumstances, unlisted companies have been permitted to calculate and account for > o g [fed
the accrued liability under the head “Gratuity”, by some other rational method. Provisions of The 8 = -
Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 gives one such method. This is based on the assumption that £5
such benefits are payable to all employees at the end of the accounting year. E E ol 5 ﬁg; || = Q @ § g § 5 § @
The management still feels that the size of the company does notmake itfeasibleto provide E ot o R s = g i3
Gratuity by way of actuarial valuation. Hence, it is decided to continue with the same accounting < g @
policy. E os|%ég w0
T =
A04) TRADEPAYABLES: E|wa|g§ wMrlooo oo o ofs g
(i) Total Outstanding dues of Creditors other than Micro, o |®%z| # 2
Small and Medium Enterprises g : =)
(a) Miscellaneous Payable (Centre head) 341,124 5,21,697 o a 2 o w W e o 3 8 (=l
(b) Liabilities for Expenses 88,611 58,720 o 28 wl|eo EE 288 8 8|85 g
o3
Total 4,29,735 5,80,417 a 2 g8 g8 5 g §
=
(i) The company has not received any memorandum (as required to be filed by the Suppliers with <
the notified authority under the Micro, small and medium Enterprises DevelopmentAct, 2006), E @ - &5 T ~
claiming their status as Micro, small or medium enterprises. Consequently, the amount paid / = s88 v g % § § & = % =
payable to these parties during the yearis Nil. E 2 @ o w g %‘ & § 2 § § < g
A05) OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES : % L e 2 %
(a) Tax deducted at Source (Payable) 193 74 o |x £]
(b) Goods & Service Tax Payable on reverse charges 6,842 1,328 w (o - & i
(c)  Instalment received in advance from customers 1,43,351 2,30,446 o3 |O £ 5 - o R e S e e
(d)  Other charges received in advance from customer 1,36,761 1,36,761 [ - 0 3 g
Total 2,87,147 3,68,609 g m <
A06) SHORT TERM PROVISIONS : o v m
w
(i) Others: t' o 5 E & e S e g o a2
B (=] B g "3 ) = 3
Provision for Tax (MAT) FY. 2017-18 8,04,325 8,04,325 £ [ [BZ % ¥ § 5
Provision for Tax (MAT) F.Y. 2018-19 2,47,537 4] E o < P
Total 10,51,862 8,04,325 o
(i)  Provision for Tax is made in accordance with the & o g E 2 28 2 = wE 1218
requirements of the Income TaxAct, 1961, o § o S TN S g g 8 & 3 % E §
L w &+ o~ o, & ()
A08) NON CURRENT INVESTMENTS : 3 = £ il
(i)  Investments in mutual fund (Quoted) 2517,41,119 24,14,52,085 2
(Details as per annexure annexed) w i
Total 2517,41,119  24,14,52,085 B z | £ %
: . o = 1) = 3 2 £ = - i
(i) The aggregate net asset value of the investment in mutual fund as on 31.03.2019 is Z | o = - 2 g £ E R B Sl §
T 31,16,30,273/- (Previous year ¥ 30,43,47,773/-) e | B 7 3 p2 = 2 £5 S |3|>
= = o
(iii)  Inthe opinion of the Management diminution in the market value of some investments is a G 8 ., e 2 ‘g a E 5: g 2 Gile|s
temporary market phenomenon and the company has adequate General Reserves to o E ® E E g E § B4 S| & 2
meet any Contingency. = § & S& & E Hew & |O|&
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ANNEXURE TO NOTE NO. A 08
LONG TERM TRADE INVESTMENT IN MUTUAL FUNDS

NAME OF MUTUAL FUNDS BALANCE AS ON 01.04.18 PURCHASE DURING THE YEAR | SALES DURING THE YEAR BALANCE AS ON 31.03.19
UNIT AMOUNT () UNIT AMOUNT () UNIT AMOUNT (%) UNIT AMOUNT (Z)
| EQUITY/ EQUITY ORIENTED FUND
| Aditya Birla Sun Life Infrastructure Fund - Dividend 52876.364 800000 52876.364 800000
:[ Aditya Birla Sun Life Digital India Fund - Dividend 198677.263 4540000 | 36840.709 800000 235517.972 5340000
Aditya Birla Sun Life Midcap Fund-Dividend 5620.082 150000 5620.082 150000
| Aditya Birla Sun Life Dividend Yield Fund - Dividend 98768.678 1500000 968768.678 1500000
| Aditya Birla Sun Life Equity Advantage Fund-Dividend 32235.001 2945000 78695.487 6931839 110930.488 9876839
Aditya Birla Sun Life Small Cap Fund-Dividend. 19525.782 527686 19525.782 527686
i Axis Bluechip Fund-Dividend. 194996.479 2971569 194996.479 2971569
Il DSP Small Cap Fund - Dividend 197399.244 2300000 197399.244 2300000
I DSP Midcap Fund-Dividend 81430.191 1350000 81430.191 1350000
DSP Top 100 Equity Fund-Dividend 18851.475 450000 18851.475 450000
DSP Equity Opportunities Fund-Dividend 140386.039 3600000 14328.111 380000 154714.150 3980000
Franklin India Prima Fund-Dividend 6154.112 300000 6154.112 300000
@ Franklin India Focussed Equity Fund-Dividend 8131.776 185000 8131.776 195000
Franklin India Opportunities Fund-Dividend 258455.470 4890000 258455.470 4890000
HDFC Equity Fund - Dividend 112787.043 3970383 112787.043 3970383
HDFC Midcap Opportunities Fund - Dividend 120048.024 1800000 6465.004 190000 126513.028 1990000
HDFC Top 100 Fund - Dividend 85222.625 3311095 85222625 3311095
HDFC Small Cap Fund - Dividend 11137.925 300000 11137.925 300000
HSBC Large Cap Equity Fund - Dividend 15412.253 450000 15412.253 450000
IDFC Mufticap Fund - Dividend 71905.018 1700000 71905.018 1700000
IDFC Focussed Equity Fund - Dividend 111372.064 1515000 111372.064 1515000
Kotak Standard Multicap Fund -Dividend 102404.947 2349722 63736.636 1389818 166141.583 3739540
L&T Midcap Fund-Dividend 28817.494 1464358 28817.494 1464358
L&T India Value Fund-Dividend 133129.871 3100000 | 112624.022 2694501 245753.893 5794501
Mirae Asset Emerging Bluechip Fund-Dividend 30100.289 750000 30100.289 750000
Principal Emerging Bluechip Fund - Dividend 101414.521 3750000 101414.521 3750000
Principal Multicap Growth Fund - Dividend 12109.470 500000 12109.470 500000
ICICI Prudential Multi Asset Fund - Dividend 156970.437 3382361 156970.437 3382361
ICICI Prudential Midcap Fund - Dividend 114160.141 2560488 114160.141 2560488
ICICI Prudential Large & Midcap Fund - Dividend 139045.468 2650000 139045.468 2650000
ICICI Prudential Multicap Fund - Dividend 99538.331 2232721 99538.331 2232721
Invesco India Contra Fund - Dividend 59554.165 1434034 59554165 1434034
Invesco India Growth Opportunities Fund - Dividend 106608.369 1687730 106608.369 1687730
Reliance Power & Infra Fund - Dividend 18761.826 950000 18761.826 950000
Reliance Multicap Fund - Dividend 332116.991 7625459 10395.659 300000 342512.650 7925459
Reliance Growth Fund - Dividend 237262.816 13090397 237262.816 13090397
Reliance Value Fund - Dividend 23042.852 453592 23042.852 453592
Reliance Vision Fund - Dividend 69531.864 3063455 69531.864 3063455
SBI Blue Chip Fund - Dividend 731960.049 12520000 731960.049 12520000
SBI Magnum Global Fund - Dividend 249226.906 6312402 249226.906 6312402
SBI Large & Midcap Fund -Dividend 45787.849 2203324 45787.849 2203324
SBI Contra Fund- Dividend 182674.880 3996850 182674.880 3996850
Sundaram Mideap Fund - Dividend 159507.107 3300000 159507.107 3300000
Sundaram Small Cap Fund - Dividend 21613.981 300000 21613.981 300000
Tata Infrastructure Fund - Dividend 54227.138 1400000 54227.138 1400000
Tata Ethical Fund - Dividend 152324.504 5076123 152324.504 5076123
Tata Large & Midcap Fund - Dividend 130805.338 3735000 B3340.946 2552821 214146.284 6287821
Tata Equity P/E Fund-TB10%-Dividend 58595.389 3080000 58595.389 3080000
i Tata India Consumer Fund-Dividend 108142.276 1816426 108142.276 1816426
= | Templeton India Value Fund - Dividend 14548.652 650000 14548652 650000
UTI Mid Cap Fund - Dividend 72775177 1950000 72775477 1950000
UT| MNC Fund - Dividend 12137.389 1100000 12137.389 1100000
TOTAL EQUITY/ EQUITY ORIENTED FUND 5227992.457 | 131656842 778723512 | 21632312 0.000 0 | 6006715.969 | 153289154
BALANCE FUNDS
Franklin India Equity Hybrid Fund - Dividend 69918.118 1350000 69918.118 1350000
HDFC Hybrid Equity Fund - Dividend 230653.735 1651644 230653.735 1651644
HDFC Balanced Advantage Fund - Dividend 266229.219 8036313 266229.219 8036313
Kotak Equity Hybrid Fund - Dividend 353540.327 7800000 353540.327 7800000
ICICI Prudential Equity & Debt Fund - Dividend 425290.686 6824467 425290.686 6824467
SBI Equity Hybrid Fund - Dividend 226425.216 5102451 226425.216 5102451
Tata Hybrid Equity Fund - Dividend 99003.484 3800000 99003.484 3800000
TOTAL BALANCE FUNDS 1671060.785 34564875 0.000 0 0.000 0 | 1671060.785 | 34564875
LIQUID FUNDS / DEBT FUND
Aditya Birla Sun Life Interval Income Fund -Qty Sr-1Growth| ~ 30741.928 440000 30741.928 440000
Aditya Birla Sun Life Interval Income Fund -Ann-IX- Growth|  20000.000 200000 20000.000 200000 0.000 0
Aditya Birla Sun Life MediumTerm Plan - Growth 192066.824 3200000 192066.824 3200000
Aditya Birla Sun Life Short Term Opp.-Fund - Growth 338939.918 6300000 338939.918 6900000
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A09) DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) (NET):

(a) Deferred tax is calculated and determined in accordance with the ﬁn_._m_.m«_.:m_._,m
of Accounting Standard - 22 "Accounting for Taxes on Income" and is subject to
the concept of prudence, on timing difference being the difference between
taxable income and accounting income that originate in one period and is
capable of reversal in one or more subsequent periods. Deferred taxassets are
reviewed for their carrying values at each balance sheet date and recognized
only if there is 'reasonable certainty’ that they will be realized in future. As
at31.03.2019 the recognized deferred tax liability/asset is as follows:-

(b) Deferred Tax Liability :

The Break-up of deferred tax liability into major components as on 31.03.2019 is
asfollows:

Particulars

31.03.2019

31.03.2018

Total
L4

Deferred Tax Impact
T

Total
T

Deferred Tax Impact
<

Timing difference on
depreciation for the year

130395

33577

148647

38277

Total

130395

33577

148647

38277

(c) Deferred Tax Assets:

The Break-up of deferred tax assets into major components as on 31.03.2019is
asfollows:

Particulars

31.03.2019

31.03.2018

Total
X

Deferred Tax Impact
T

Total
.o

Deferred Tax Impact
T

(i) Gratuity

1956483

503794

1903718

490207

Total

1956483

503794

1903718

490207

Aditya Birla Sun Life Corporate Bond Fund - Growth

Aditya Birla Sun Life Savings Fund-Growth

Axis Liquid Fund-Growth

Auxis Ultra Short Term Fund-Growth
DSP Credit Risk Fund - Growth

DSP Low Duration Fund-Growth

Frankiin India Credit Risk Fund - Growth

Franklin India USBF Super Inst. Plan-Growth

HDFC Credit Risk Debt Fund - Growth

Franklin India Short Term Income Plan - Growth
HDFC Liquid Fund - Growth

ICICI Prudential Medium Term Bond Fund - Growth

ICICI Prudential Bond Fund - Growth
Invesco India Liquid Fund - Growth
IDFC Low Duration Fund- Growth

Kotak Dynamic Bond Fund -Growth
Kotak Low Duration Fund -Growth
L&T Money Market Fund -Growth

Principal Short Term Debt Fund -Growth

Principal Low Duration Fund -Growth

Reliance Strategic Debt Fund - Growth
Reliance Low Duration Fund -Growth
Reliance Credit Risk Fund - Growth

Tata Treasury Advantage Fund - Growih

TOTAL LIQUID /DEBT FUNDS

Tata Short Term Bond Fund - Growth
FIXED MATURITY PLANS

IDFC Fixed Term Plan Series 88 - Growth

TATA Fixed Maturity Plan Series 44 Sch D- Growth

TOTAL FIXED MATURITY PLANS

GRAND TOTAL

w
n

(d) NetDeferred Tax Assets/(Liability) T 470217/~ (Previous Year ¥ 451930/-)

{e) The net deferred tax recognized in the profit and loss account is ¥ 18287/- (Previous year
T 9260/-)

(f) Netdeferred tax adjusted from deferred tax reserve Alc T NIL (Previous Year T 36803/-)

As at As at

31.03.2019 31.03.2018
T T

Particulars

LONG TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES :

(a) Loan on vehicle (Secured by hypothecation
of vehicles)
(b) Security Deposit with KESCO LTD.
(c) Security Deposit with (PNG)
Total

(i) Balance in some accounts of long term loans and advances

confirmation. )
(iii) Loans and advances to related parties - NIL (Previous Year-NIL)

A 10) (i)

1,25,59,167
25,200
6,000

1,25,90,367

76,94,557
25,200
6,000

77,25,757
is subject to
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Particulars As at As at Year ended Year ended
31032019 31.032018 g 31032019  31.03.2018
T < L 1 T
A11) (i) TRADE RECEIVABLES : A15) REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS :
Interest on loan receivable 1,04,824 1,10,294 (a) Interest (TDS ¥ NIL (Last Year ¥ 4618/-) 29,70,920 32,24,293
(Secured considered good) | (b) Other financial services
Total 1,04,824 1,10,294 | () Overdue interest (TDS ¥ NIL Last year ¥ NIL) 79,461 18,235
(i) Balance in some accounts of trade receivables () Pracessing charges 221788 1100
is subject to confirmation. (b) Sub Total 3,07,211 1,63,335
(iii) All trade receivables are outstanding for a period less than six months from the Grand Total (a+b) 32,78,131 33,87,628
date they are due for payment. Also, no dgpts are due by directors or any other
officers of the company either severally or jointly. A16) Oﬁ {ER INCOME :
. (i) 'Dividend Income 1,28,11,948  2,16,47,427
A12) CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS : (i) Net gain / loss on sale of investments 25,99,084 56,52,973
(a) Cash in hand 1,09,371 84,366 (iii) QIhar non-operating income (net of expenses)
(b) Balances with scheduled banks : (@) Balance written back 150 404
In current account 13,39,913 46,49,884 (b} Profit on Sale of Assets 0 41,999
(c)\ Miscellaneous Income 2,430 15,000
Total 1449284  47,34.250 (d) Provision Written Back 0 2,339
{c) There are no bank deposits with more than 12 months maturity. (e) Interest received from Income Tax 15,000 0
Sub Total (iii) 18,180 59,742
A13) (i) SHORT TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES : Total [(i) + (ii) + (iii)] 1,54,29,212  2,73,60,142
(a) Loan on vehicle (Secured by Grand Total (15+16)  1,87,07,343  3,07,47,770
hypothecation of vehicles) 19,59,305 23,02,108
(b) Advance Income Tax 10,29,460 9,30,000
) A17) EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES :
(c) Advance to The Registrar State Consumer
Commission 25,000 25,000 (a) Salaries expenses 24,18,176 24,78,858
(d) Prepaid expenses (1o the extent 22,502 24,948 (b) Bonus /Ex-Gratia 1,35,860 1,35,860
not writ{en,oﬁ) (C} Stipeﬂd pald 0 60,000
(d) Contribution to Provident Fund 1,15,987 1,06,931
Total
9 30,30.70%.  S2H8057 (e) Employees Pension Fund 78,005 91,141
(i) Balance in some accounts of short term loans and advances is subject to (f) Administrative Expenses & Insurance to P.F. 18,989 24,562
confirmation. (@) Gratuity 76,246 3,21,524
(iii) Loans and advances to related parties - Nil (Previous Year - Nil) (h) Leave Encashment 1,45,100 1,78,664
(i) Staff welfare expenses 53,406 96,274
A 14) OTHER CURRENT ASSETS : et it LT
(a) Dividend Receivable 1,42,627 53,390 A18) FINANCE COSTS:
(b) Income Tax Receivable 1,45,600 0 Interest Expenses 0 12
Total 2,88,227 53,390 Total 0 12
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Dot et o gl ey g NOTE TO THE BALANCE SHEET OF A NON DEPOSIT TAKING NON-BANKING FINANCIAL COMPANY
T e {as required in the terms of Paragraph 13 of Non-Banking Financial (Non Deposit

&

£ 5 Accepting or Holding) Companies Prudential Norms (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2007}
A 19) OTHER EXPENSES : / ;
it et dealimodetediing / ¥ in Lacs
(i) Conveyance Expenses 5,14,853 4 75;962
it ' Amount Amount
(i) Powerand Fuel 3,75,311 3,62,598 FERTICULARS outstanding overdue
(iii) Directors Sitting Fee 58,000 37,000
(iv) Rates & Taxes excluding taxes on Income 49,294 45.252 LIABILITIES SIDE :
(v) Repairs to Buildi 1. Loans and advances availed by the NBFCs
: P ) ng 835 | 0 inclusive of interest accrued thereon but
(vi) Repairs to Machinery 95,527 / 82,970 not paid :
(vii) Insurance 38,062 | 7404 (a) Debentures :Secured NIL NIL
(viii) Payment to Statutory Audit Fee 30,000 | 30,000 : Unsecured NIL NIL
(i) Internal Audit Expenses 6 860 / - (other than falling within the
) d : meaning of public deposits)”
(x) Miscellaneous Expenses 10,98,995 | 8,94,185 (b) Deferred Credits NIL NIL
(xi) Donations 5,00,000 | 5,00,000 (c) TermLoans NIL NIL
{(xu)) zerwce Cr::a;ges 1,10,300 65.250 (d) Inter-corporate loans and borrowings NIL NIL
X |
f" eccla\ffary arges 1,05,503 1,59,680 (e) Commercial Paper NIL NIL
(xiv) Provision required by prudential norms 18,087 / 0 f)  OtherL ifv nat NIL NIL
(xv) Professional Charges 66,700 89,300 @ erkioans (speciynatire)
*Please see Note 1 below.
Total { (i) to (xv) } 30,67,467 27,55,601
A20) EARNING PER SHARE: ASSETS SIDE: T in Lacs
(i) Annualised earning per equity share has been calculated on the net profit PARTICULARS Amount Amount
(after taxation) of ¥ 1,20,58,726/- (previous year ¥ 2,34,18,994/-) taken as the outstanding outstanding
numerator divided by number of equity shares 60,00,000 (previous year
60,00,000) taken as the denominator. 7 Break-up of Lo Advances includin
bills rece le (other than those included
Particulars Year ended Year ended in (3) below :
31.03.2019 31.03.2018 (a) Secured NIL
i T (b) Unsecured 4.21 4.21
, Basic Earning per share 2.01 3.90 3. Break-up of Leased Assets and Stockon hire
: X e and other Assets counting towards AFC activities :
Tafal 2.0 3.90 (i) Leaseassetsincluding lease rentals
(i) There is no diluted earning per share in the company. under sundry debtors:
(a) Financial Lease NIL
(B) ADDITIONAL NOTES : (b) Operating Lease NIL NIL
(i) (a) The company follows the Reserve Bank of India guidelines applicable to (i) Stockon hireincluding hire charges
Non Banking Financial Companies regarding assets classification, under sundry debtors :
provisioning and income recognition onnon performing assets and (a) Assetson hire NIL
accounting for Investments. (b) Repossessed Assets NIL NIL
(b) Information required to be disclosed in terms of paragraph 13 of Non (i) Otherloans counting towards AFC activities :
Banking} Financial (Non Deposit Accepting or Holding) Companies (a) Loanswhere assets have been repossessed NIL
Prudential Norms (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2007 is as under :- (b) Loans otherthan (a)above 146.23 146.23

56 57




o

K

4,

Break-up of Investments :
Current Investments :

(1) Quoted:
(i) Shares: (a) Equity NIL
(b) Preference NIL
(ii) Debentures and Bonds NIL
(iii) Units of Mutual Funds NIL
(iv) Government Securities NIL
(v) Others (please specify) NIL NIL
(2) Unguoted:
(i) Shares: (a) Equity NIL
(b) Preference NIL
(i) Debentures and Bonds NIL
(iii) Units of Mutual Funds NIL
(iv) Government Securities NIL
(v) Others (please specify) NIL NIL
Long Term Investments :
(1) Quoted:
(i) Shares: (a) Equity NIL
(b) Preference NIL
(i) Debenturesand Bonds NIL
(i) Units of Mutual Funds 2517 .41
(iv) Government Securities NIL
(v) Others (please specify) NIL 2517.41
(2) Unquoted:
(i) Shares: (a) Equity NIL
(b) Preference NIL
(if) Debentures and Bonds NIL
(i) Units of Mutual Funds NIL
(iv) Government Securities NIL
(v) Others (please specify) NIL NIL

Borrower group-wise classification of Assets financed as in (2) and (3) above :
Please see Note 2 below Z in Lacs

Amount Net of Provisions

CATEGORY
Secured Unsecured Total

(1) Related Parties**

(a) Subsidiaries NIL NIL NIL

(b) Companies inthe same group NIL NIL NIL

(c) Otherrelated parties NIL NIL NIL

(2) Otherthan Related Parties 146.23 4.21 150.44
Total 146.23 421 150.44
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6. Investor group-wise classification of all investments (current and long term) in shares and securities
(both quoted and unquoted): Please see Note 3 below ¥ inLacs
Market Value/Break-up Book Value (Net
CATEGORY | fair Value / NAV of Provisions)
1] Related Parties*™
(a) Subsidiaries NIL NIL
(b) Companies inthe same group NIL NIL
(c) Otherrelated parties NIL NIL
(i)~ Otherthan Related Parties 3116.30 2517.41
Total 3116.30 2517.41
**As per Accounting Standard of ICAI (Please see Note 3)
7.  Otherinformation: T inLaes
PARTICULARS Amount
(i  GrossNon-performing assets :
(a) Related Parties NIL
{b)  Otherthan related parties NIL NIL
(i)  NetMon-performing Assets :
(a) Related Parties NIL
(b)  Otherthan related parties NIL NIL
(i)  Assets acquired in satisfaction of debt NIL NIL

NOTES :

= 4] As defined in Paragraph 2(1)(xii} of the Non-Banking Financial Companies Acceptance, of
Public Deposits (Reserve Bank) Directions, 1998.

2. Provisioning norms shall be applicable as prescribed in the Non-Banking Financial {(non deposit
accepting or holding) Companies Prudential Norms (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2007,

3. All Accounting Standards and Guidance Notes issued by ICAl are applicable including for
valuation of investments and other assets as also assets acquired in satisfaction of debt.
However, market value in respect of quoted investments and break-up/fair value/NAY in respect
of unquoted investments has been disclosed irrespective of whether they are classified as long
term or current in column (4) above.

B (ii) In the financial year 2018-19 the Company has operated in only one business segment, hence,
compliance of AS-17 regarding "Segment Reporting" is not necessary.

B (iii) Accounting Standard (18) on "Related Disclosure”

(A) Particulars 018-1 2017-18
In Respectof:

Rendering of Services T 1,771,575 T 177,072

T 10,61,213 T 10,58,086

Key Managerial Remuneration

(B) Subsidiaries
(C) Promoter Director
(D) KeyManagement Personnel

There is no subsidiary of the Company
Dr. K.B. Agarwal

Shri G.D. Maheshwari

Shri 8. N. Tripathi

Shri R.N. Singh

Shri V. K. Pandey

Dr.B.D. Agarwal

(Brother of Dr. K.B. Agarwal)

Mr. Madan Maheshwari

(Brother of ShriG.D. Maheshwari)

(E) Relative of Promoter Director
& Key Management Personnel
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B(iv) CONTINGENT LIABILITIES :

CONTINGENT LIABILITY NOT PROVIDED FOR

(2018-19)  (2017-18)

Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debt T NIL T NIL
B(v) The figures have been rounded off to the nearest rupee.

B (vi) Last year's figures have been regrouped and re-arranged wherever necessary to conform to the figures of
the current year.

(C)  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

VALUATION :-

I Fixed Assets are valued at cost.

ii. — Non-current investments are valued at cost.

iii.  Current investments are valued at lower of cost or fair value.
iv.  Stock on Hire are valued at Cost less Capital recovery.

PHYSICAL VERIFICATION :-

i.  Fixed Assets (Property, Plant & Equipment) in use of the Company are physically verified once
in every year.

ii.  Physical verification of stock on hire is carried out on test check basis.

DEPRECIATION :-

i.  In respect of Tangible Assets, of the company Depreciation is provided on Straight Line method
over the useful lives of assets specified in Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013,

REVENUE RECOGNITION :-

i Allincome & expenses are accounted for on accrual basis, except otherwise stated,

ii.  Interest on overdue instalments and dividend on shares of corporate bodies and units of mutual
funds are accounted for on certainty of the realisation.

ii. ~ The Company has followed the prudential norms for Income recognition and provisioning for
non-performing assets as prescribed by the Reserve Bank of India for non-banking financial
companies.

(e) EARNING PER SHARE :-
The Company reports eamings per share in accordance with AS-20.

(i EMPLOYEE BENEFITS :-
i. Pmﬂ;i;i_?;s for Retirement benefits for Gratuity are made as per The Payment of Gratuity

Act, 4

ii.  Leave Encashment is accounted as per Service Rules and charged to the P&L Account.
iii.  Contribution to Provident Fund is recognised when due.

{(g) INTANGIBLE ASSETS :-
The Company recognised intangible assets in accordance with AS 26.

(h)  IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS :-
An asset is impaired if there are sufficient indication that the carrying cost would exceed the
recoverable amount of cash generating assets. In that event an impairment loss so computed would
be recognised in the accounts in the relevant year,

AUDITOR'S REPORT

As per our separate Report of even date atached 5 N. TRIPATHI

for VINAYAK TANDON & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
(FRN : 006751C) CFO

(CA. VINAYAK TANDON)

Partner

Membership No. : 072968

Place : Kanpur
Dated : 15th May, 2019

DR. K. B. AGARWAL
Company Secretary Chairman

R. N. SINGH PADAM KUMAR JAIN
Director

MANJU JAIN
Director

RAJ KUMAR GUPTA
Director

G. D. MAHESHWARI
Executive Director

33rd Annual Report
KEY CORP LIMITED ATTENDANCE SLIP
CIN ; L65921UP1985PLC007547
Regd. Office : 16/16-A, Civil Lines, Kanpur - 208 001

PLEASE FILL ATTENDANCE SLIP AND HAND IT OVER AT THE ENTRANCE OF THE MEETING HALL
Jointshareholders may obtain additional slip at the venue of the meeting.

DP ID* FolioNo.

Client ID*

Name and Address of the Shareholder.
.. | hereby record my presence at the 33rd ANNUAL GENERAL MIEIETING of the Company
held on Saturday August 10, 2019 at 10.00 a.m. atthe Registered Office of the Company at 16/16A, Civil Lines, Kanpur.

*Applicable for invertors holding shares in efectronic form.

No.of Shares

Signature of Shareholder/proxy
W —s@— = PLEASE CUT HERE AND BRING THE ABOVE ATTENDANCE SLIP AT THE MEETING = = m—— e e
KEY CORP LIMITED PROXY FORM

:E CIN : L65921UP1985PLC007547
Regd. Office : 16/16-A, Civil Lines, Kanpur - 208 001

[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

Name of the member(s) e-mailld
Registered Office Folio No/*Client Id.
*DPId.
IWe, being the member(s) of. h fKey Corp Limited, hereby appoint:
1) of havinge-mailid orfailing him
2) of havinge-mailid orfailing him
3) of having e-mailid

and whose signature(s) are appended below as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for mefus and on my.’uuul' behalf at the
33rd A.nnua;%neneragh}!eating of the Company to be held on Saturday 10th August, 2019at10.00a.m. atthe Registered Office
of the Company at 16/16A, Civil Lines, Kanpur-208 001 and at my adjiournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are
indicated below :

** |wish my above Proxy to votein the manner as indicated in the box below :

| No. | Resolutions For Against
Ordinary Business :

1. | Adoption of Financial Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2019
Appointment of M/s. Vinayak Tandon & Associates, Chartered Accountants as
Auditors and fixing their ramuneration.
Special Business | Special Resolutions

3. | Appointment of Shri Raj Kumar Gupta as an Independent Director.

4. | Re-appointment of Shri Padam Kumar Jain as an Independent Director.

5. | Re-appointment of Shri G.D. Maheshwari as whole-time Director.

6. | Approve the continuing the Directorship of Dr. K.B. Agarwal.

7. | Approve the continuing the Directorship of Dr. B.D. Agarwal.
Sigedihis dayof 2018 “Signatureofsharehodsr
“Signalure of firstproxy holder Signature of second proxy holder Signature of third proxy holder

Notes : 1, This form of proxy in arder fo be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered Office of the Company not
lessthan 48 hrs. before th tofthe meeting, 2. Aproxy need notbe a member ofthe Company, 3..il’q:vnersorlmanaotasapﬂ:pq‘r
on behalf of members not exceeding fifty and helding in the aggregata not more than 10% of the total share capital of the company carying
votingrights. Amember holding more than 10% of the total share capital of the company carrying voling rights may appoin:asmglle person
83 proxy and such person shall not act as a proxy for any other person or shareholders. ”4.|Th|s leonlly optional. Please put a x‘ in the
appropriate column againatheresoluﬁonsindiw::}&&: B:; kfyou]aave'gnr or'Against againstany orallui:m"am;'g
rproxy will be entitiedtovote inthe manner as inks appropriate. 5. Appointing a proxy ot n
mmin person if he sowishes. 6. Inthe casa ofjointthe holders, the signature of any one holder will be sufficient, but name of all the
jointholders should be stated.




